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MISSION

The BPOPF administers and 

provides retirement benefits for 

its members to afford them a 

dignified post career life through 

a dedicated workforce, service 

providers and alliances.

VISION

To be a world - class provider 
of retirement benefits 
within the pension fund 
industry.

VALUES

Integrity
To portray professional behaviour and ethics

Honesty
To act faithfully and sincerely

Transparency
To be open and trustworthy

Teamwork
To pull together

Accountability
To take responsibility for our decisions

Customer Focus
To serve the best interests of our customers

Botho
To conduct ourselves in a respectable manner 

at all times by being courteous, considerate, 

responsive, and professional
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during this year, the Fund found itself in a place of new beginnings. we 

welcomed ms Boitumelo molefe as the Principal officer and Chief executive 

officer of the Fund. ms molefe, a Chartered accountant by profession, joined 

us from Bokamoso Private Hospital where she had been the Chief Financial 

officer. she has also been previously at the helm of debswana Pension Fund 

for a period of 8 years and is therefore quite experienced in the business of 

managing pension funds. 

Here is To New Beginnings

It gives me great pleasure to present to you 
the Trustee Report for the financial year 2015 - 2016.

CHairmaN’s Review

I would also like to take this opportunity to 
thank Ms Lesedi Moakofhi our past Acting 
Chief Executive Officer for steering the 
Fund through a challenging two years and 
wish her well in her future endeavours. 
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I describe this year as one of new 
beginnings as the Fund is adjusting to a 
new Retirement Funds Act. Unlike in other 
countries where government pension 
funds have their own Acts, the BPOPF 
is regulated by the Non-Bank Financial 
Institutions Regulatory Authority (NBFIRA). 
We find this to be progressive as it 
ensures the highest levels of corporate 
governance and risk management. Most 
of all, it offers protection to the most 
important stakeholder; the Member. 
As Chairman of the Fund, I would like to 
assure our members that the Fund has 
made the necessary preparations to 
ensure that it is ready for the new Act. 

This year, NBFIRA also reviewed PFR 
2, which focuses on Pension Fund 
Investment Rules. Pension Funds were 
given up to April 2015 and the BPOPF was 
fully compliant by the deadline. 

Another first that we experienced is that 
the Fund insourced all services that were 
previously outsourced to Alexander Forbes 
Financial Services. These services include 
benefits administration and financial 
administration. The Insourcing Project 
which started in 2013 was completed this 
year and was deemed to be a success 
by the Board; instead of being just a 
secretariat; the BPOPF is now a fully-
fledged administrator. This new business 
model does pose some performance and 
service risk and as a result, it has become 
a strategic initiative of the Board to ensure 
that administration is stabilised.  

Investments – a defined 
Contribution Fund’s Lifeline

As a Defined Contribution Pension Fund, 
the BPOPF investment risk lies with the 
members. It is therefore critical that they 
are educated and kept informed about 
their investments. To some extent, the 
Fund has introduced member investment 
choice as the option to switch to capital 
protection is available to members nearing 
retirement. Disappointingly, based on the 
statistics, it is apparent that the majority 
of eligible members are not exercising 
this option. This therefore leaves them 
vulnerable and exposed to the market. It 
is therefore another strategic initiative 
for the Board to give priority to member 
education and communication. 

During the financial year the assets under 
management grew from P51.709bn to P 
54.583bn, a growth of 5.56%. This resulted 
in a bonus declaration of 7% for the active 
and deferred members portfolio, 8% for 
the pre-retirement switch portfolio and 
2.5% for the with profit pensioner portfolio. 
The Actuaries also declared that the Fund 
was solvent. 

For the period under review, the BPOPF 
and other pension funds faced challenges 
in both the local and international 
investment markets. The challenges 
faced by Botswana are similar to 
those experienced by other developing 
economies in sub-Saharan Africa and 
worldwide. In Botswana the challenges 
were the low growth in the economy 
exacerbated by weak commodity prices, 
low market liquidity and the infancy of the 
alternatives market. 

5.56%
GROWTH IN ASSETS UNDER 
MANAGEMENT
 

resulting in a bonus declaration of 7% 
for the active and deferred members 
portfolio, 8% for the pre-retirement 
switch portfolio and 2.5% for the with 
profit pensioner portfolio.
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has a Citizen Economic Empowerment 
Policy in place that advocates for local 
ownership and procurement in companies 
that conduct business with the Fund. 

During this year, the construction of 
the Hilton Hotel commenced in the CBD 
and is expected to be completed by the 
first quarter of 2018. The project has 
created vital jobs during the construction 
phase and will create fulltime jobs once 
completed. The Fund has also partnered 
with local construction companies and 
encouraged local procurement. 

Benefits administration 
and operations

As at 31st March 2016, the Fund had 146 
709 Active and Deferred members and 7 
643 Pensioners. Being a public sector fund, 
the members are spread across the entire 
country and therefore administration and 
member education has been a challenge. 
To counter this, the Fund has set up 
Regional Offices in Gaborone, Francistown, 
Maun and Kang. This has helped to 
take services to the members and the 
Government pay points. 

The administration of death benefits 
is a large component of the regional 
administration and regular communication 
and education is needed in this area due 
to its sensitivity and applicable laws. The 
BPOPF continues to be a leader in this 
area having set up the processes from 
inception. 

Internationally global growth was under 
pressure with a low earnings environment 
and very low interest rates. Furthermore, 
the traditional asset classes where pension 
funds used to experience phenomenal 
growth have been struggling. As a Fund we 
therefore recognise the increasing need to 
look at alternatives in order to keep pace 
with expected returns. This means that we 
must enhance our risk management and 
compliance infrastructure and develop 
sophisticated and experienced internal 
capabilities. Comprehensive reporting 
is also necessary and Trustees must 
enhance their skill set to understand what 
safeguards need to be built into internal 
and external management.  

the Fund as a Corporate Citizen

As the largest pension fund in the country, 
the BPOPF continues to contribute 
to Government’s citizen economic 
empowerment initiatives. To date the 
Fund has invested more than P 400mn in 
local private equity and has a strategic 
allocation of approximately P2bn in local 
infrastructure and property. The Fund 

Chairman’s Review [continued]

Being a young Fund, the Net Replacement 
Ratio of the Fund at an average of 55% 
is low and needs to be improved so that 
members can retire with dignity. As part 
of the strategy for the next five years 
the Board has therefore identified this as 
a priority area and has put processes in 
place to address and measure it. 

Contributions for the year were P 2.411bn 
and  P 1.94bn was paid as benefits.  

Risk and governance

As Pension Fund Trustees, we owe a duty 
of care to the members and therefore 
governance is taken very seriously by 
the Board. We recognise that our role is 
onerous and therefore we observe the 
highest levels of ethics and responsibility 
when making decisions. Attendance and 
participation at Board and committee 
meetings has been good this year and 
we have kept to all scheduled meetings. 
In ensuring that the right decisions are 
made, the Fund management carried 
out extensive Trustee training after 
identifying knowledge and skills gaps. The 
Board also carried out a performance 
assessment and the recommendations 
are being discussed for implementation. 
The constitutional nature of our Board has 
been deemed by some to be a challenge 
but I can confidently say that my 
assessment is that the Board was united 
in recognising that the Fund exists for the 
benefit of its members and this has been 
the guiding principle. 

P24.11bn
CONTRIBUTED IN FINANCIAL YEAR
 

while P1.94bn was paid as benefits
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It is indeed a privilege to be called upon 
to serve in this manner and be intrusted 
with this responsibility of protecting and 
growing members’ assets. My Board and 
I look forward to the next year where 
together with our stakeholders we will 
continue this journey. To our members, 
we constantly seek innovative solutions to 
meet your needs.  

Pula!

C. N. Morupisi
Board Chairman

In recognition of the importance of risk 
management, the Board set up a separate 
Risk Committee during this year. Previously 
the committee had been combined with 
the Audit Committee. The Committee 
looks at all aspects of risk affecting the 
Fund and is also in the process of setting 
up an operating environment that can 
detect money laundering and terrorism 
activities, amongst others. 

With the advent of insourcing, data 
management and security are now the 
responsibility of the Board and therefore a 
secure information environment is critical. 
One of the priority areas of the Fund this 
year and going forward is therefore in the 
Information Systems environment and the 
Risk Committee report on this and other 
aspects to the Board on a quarterly basis. 

Finally…

In conclusion I would like to thank the 
Board, The Chief Executive Officer and staff 
of the BPOPF for the hard work they have 
put in this year. I would also like to thank 
our service providers who have exercised 
their roles with care and diligence. It was 
a year of many changes, and the journey 
that lies ahead will be just as challenging. 
Never before has the world been in a mode 
of such quick and unexpected change and 
pension funds must be versatile and be 
able to respond quickly to challenges. The 
advent of decisions such a Brexit and sub-
zero inflationary environments mean that 
new ideas must be sought for growth. 
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A note to members: Boitumelo Molefe joined BPOPF as CEO in July 2015, and was 

consequently only present for the last 9 months of the 2015 – 2016 financial year.

In 2012, the Board of Trustees made 
a decision to insource all the Fund’s 
services. In terms of this decision, 
the Fund Administration, Investment 
Management, Accounting and Finance 
functions, all previously outsourced to 
Alexander Forbes Financial Services, were 
to be insourced. The 2015 – 2016 financial 

CHiEF EXECUTiVE OFFiCEr’s 
RePORT

a year of Change

the Botswana Public officers’ Pension Fund has seen enormous changes take 

place during the year. as a result of successful change management and 

positive buy-in from staff, the organisation has responded positively to its 

transformed structure and additional functions. organisational restructuring 

is always a serious challenge, however the indications are that BPoPF will 

continue to successfully adapt to its new, high-performance format while 

providing a seamless service experience to its members. 
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year saw the full implementation of this 
decision, resulting in a restructured BPOPF 
successfully taking on all these functions. 

strategic viewpoint
The overarching strategic priority during 
the transformation process has been 
to ensure the stability of the Fund’s 
administrative systems. While in normal 

circumstances, administrative systems 
are an operational matter, during a 
major organisational transformation, 
administrative stability and continuity 
become critical success factors. 

Many challenges were encountered during 
the implementation of the new structure, 
particularly with regard to backlogs 
that needed to be addressed vigorously. 
However, the organisation’s confidence is 
growing as employees acquire new skills 
and adapt to new processes.

A new Strategic Plan was developed 
during the year under review to guide the 
next phase of BPOPF’s development.

the Letlhabile Project

The Letlhabile Project, conducted 
during the 2015 – 2016 financial year, 
encompassed the entire restructuring 
and insourcing change process, and 
included the rebranding of BPOPF to give 
expression to its transformation from a 
Fund Secretariat to a fully-fledged Fund 
Administrator. 

Restructuring took place during November 
and December 2015, and the new structure 
was fully in place by April 2016, shortly 
after the close of the financial year. The 
restructuring process saw the creation 
and resourcing of fully-fledged Fund 
Administration, Investment Management, 
Accounting and Finance departments and 
the insourcing of these functions. 

Rebranding of the organisation
The strategic aim is for BPOPF to change 
into a high-performing organisation, 
and to deliver exceptional service to its 
members. This is central to the Fund’s 
strategic theme of optimising the 
operating model. The efficiencies of the 
new insourced administration model have 
been translated into a new corporate 
identity that speaks to member centricity 
and service excellence. 

The BPOPF message must be clear: we 
exist to secure and grow our members’ 
funds. Members can expect the new 
organisational model to deliver better, 
more timely service in a secure data 
environment. Restructuring and insourcing 
have brought an opportunity for the 
Fund to to leverage its asset base while 
maintaining focus on risk and governance. 
A new Risk Committee was formed during 
this financial year for this purpose.

Regulatory Challenges 

In terms of Section 50 of the NBFIRA Act, 
new regulations known as the Pensions 
Prudential Rules (PRF2) were introduced. 
The PFR2 Fund Investment Rules address 
investment and risk management, setting 
out pension funds’ obligations with 
regard to investment strategy, valuation 
of assets, transitional arrangements and 
types of assets to be held; and the Fund 
became compliant within the timeframe 
set by the Authority. Some adjustment of 
the Fund’s off-shore investment structure 
was required, but this issue was resolved 
during the course of the year.
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stakeholder engagement
As an integral part of the transformation 
and rebranding process, extensive 
engagement was conducted with 
stakeholders. The emphasis was on 
boosting stakeholder confidence in the 
transformed Fund, its activities and 
strategy going forward. Stakeholder 
feedback has allowed the establishment of 
a member satisfaction baseline, through 
which the Fund can better understand 
member expectations, identify service 
and process gaps, and roll out a new 
Communication Strategy.

Communication strategy
BPOPF was previously a traditional, rather 
than a modern fund. It now has the 
opportunity to reinvent itself, to provide 
exemplary service to its members, to 
grow member funds and to launch new 
product sets that are being developed 
to manage members’ investment risk – 
in short, to become a high-performance 
organisation. This new identity needs 
to be clearly communicated, so that all 
stakeholders are aware of the benefits 
of the new structure and direction of the 
Fund. 

The key remaining component of the tra
nsformation process is the enhancement 
of member information and education. 
Central to the communication strategy 
are the newly enabled regional offices 
which will spearhead regional outreach 
and member education drives.

Future outlook

While the Fund’s four investment portfolios 
all outperformed the benchmark, the 
organisation cannot rest on its laurels 
and must take cognisance of a rapidly 
changing global investment landscape. 
The Investment Report details the 
performance of the various portfolios, and 
while this makes pleasing reading, BPOPF 
must ensure that its strategy looks to the 
medium- and long-term future.

a new Investment Plan
During the year, the Fund’s Investment 
Strategy was revised, and new policies 
have been developed around alternative 
investments. This has been necessary as 
traditional, developed investment markets 
have become stagnant in response to the 
slowing global economy, and some mature 
markets are experiencing deflation and 
negative growth. The performance of 
traditional investments such as listed 
equities has shown a decline, necessitating 
a fresh approach. 

In terms of the revised strategy, the 
Fund is now playing in alternative 
investment spaces such as private equity, 
infrastructure and property. These are 
long-term investments, and typical future 
investments for the Active and Deferred 
Member Portfolio would be expected 
to mature over a 25-year period. By 
broadening the scope of its investments, 
BPOPF seeks to ensure the long-term 
stability, security and growth of its 
members’ funds.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report [continued]

The new Retirement Funds Act, currently 
being drafted by the Attorney General’s 
office is expected to be enacted soon. 
BPOPF has already aligned itself with 
the anticipated requirements of the Act 
during the year under review.

Human Resources

Changing the organisational structure 
and insourcing all fund administration 
functions required related augmentation 
of the Fund’s human resources and 
improved human resource management. 
This included the introduction of proper 
performance management processes, 
appropriate talent attraction and retention 
strategies, and other enhancements in 
line with the needs of a high-performing 
organisation.

In order to broaden the Fund’s service 
footprint, all four regional offices - 
Gaborone, Francistown, Maun and Kang - 
have been fully enabled. Members are now 
able receive services from their nearest 
regional office. Previously only Gaborone 
and Francistown were fully staffed and 
able to provide the complete range of 
member services.
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acknowledgements

I would like to thank my Board for providing 
direction and support during this year 
of change; and my Executive Committee 
for believing in the dream that we can 
become the greatest pension fund.

I also extend my sincere appreciation to 
my staff members for keeping the faith 
and helping us to manage the change 
while ensuring seamless service to our 
members. My thanks also to our service 
providers for supporting our strategies.

To you, the members, I affirm that your 
interests will always be paramount in 
everything we do. I thank you for your 
support and ask you to join us in looking 
forward to another eventful year!

Boitumelo Molefe
Chief Executive Officer
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FiNaNCE DirECTOr’s 
RePORT

the Finance department is
responsible for accurate 
recording of the day to day 
inflows and outflows of the 
members’ funds in accordance 
with established concepts, 
principles and International 
Financial Reporting standards 
(IFRs) by means of Income 
statement, Balance sheet and 
Cash Flow statement.

The department adheres to:

• the in-house financial regulations and 

policies 

• the Non-Banking Financial Institutions 
Regulatory Authority (NBFIRA) Act

• the Pension and Provident Funds Act 

• the King III code of corporate 

governance with the intention to 
upgrade to King IV in due course.

1 0
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system enhancements

Over the year, two new systems, 
an investment reporting system 
(Fundamentals) and a fund administration 
system (Fundworx), were procured and 
commissioned. The implementation of the 
two systems has greatly enhanced the 
department’s reporting function. 

staff Complement 

The Pension Fund accounting function 
was previously outsourced to Alexander 
Forbes Financial Services. As part of the 
Fund’s strategy to insource all core fund 
administration services, BPOPF has set 
up a fully-fledged Finance department, 
with all functions now being performed 
in-house. Consequently, it has been 
necessary to adequately resource the 
department to execute these functions. 

Reporting

The core function of the department 
is financial planning and analysis, with 
a focus on two aspects: Historical and 
Future reporting. 

Historical reporting involves variance 
analysis focused on comparing actual 
performance against budget. While 
historical financial reporting and analysis 
are indispensable management tools, they 
only look at performance after the event.

Future, or predictive reporting on the other 
hand, focuses on actual performance 
against forecasts, allowing a more 
proactive approach to financial operations 
and decision making. Forecasting helps 
determine areas of improvement and 
provides a roadmap for the organisation 
to follow to meet long-term strategic 
goals.

The Finance department periodically 
reports to the following structures to 
enhance informed decision making: 

•	 On	a	monthly	basis	-	Executive	

Committee and Finance & Investment 
Committee

•	 On	a	quarterly	basis	-	Finance	&	

Investment Committee and to the 
Board of Trustees.

Performance Highlights of 
the Year 1st April 2015 to 31st 
March 2016

9% increase
in Pension contributions, from 
P2.2 billion to P2.4 billion

6% increase
in Members’ funds from 
P43.9 billion to P46.4 billion

5% growth
in Assets under management 
from P52.4 billion to P55 billion

102.52% 
Funding level 

1 1
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The Fund’s regional offices are the first 
point of contact for members, and the 
Fund Administration Head Office is the 
‘back office’ which processes claims and 
performs data management. The regional 
offices receive members’ claims and 
queries, which are then passed to Head 
Office. 

In addition to being the primary 
touchpoint for members, the regional 
offices are responsible for: 
•	 member	education	
•	 conducting	social	investigations
•	 stakeholder	engagement;	especially	

BPOPF’s key stakeholders - 
Government, BURS, the banks etc.

FUND aDmiNisTraTiON 
RePORT

while this handover took place after 

the end of the year under review, 

the Letlhabile project, which was 

successfully conducted during the 

2015 - 2016 financial year, ensured 

that the insourcing transition would 

be seamless; and that the change 

would not impact negatively on 

service delivery to members.

Insourcing the Fund Administration Function

The Fund administration function, previously outsourced to Alexander Forbes Financial Services, was 
effectively transferred to the in-house Fund Administration department on the 1st June 2016.

The rationale of insourcing is to reduce 
service delivery costs, thereby enabling 
better service provision and increasing 
customer satisfaction. A member 
satisfaction survey was conducted to 
establish a baseline against which the 
department can measure future service 
delivery and member satisfaction levels.

structure

The Fund Administration department is 
responsible for: 
•	 Member	enrolment
•	 Receiving	monthly	contributions
•	 Processing	claims
•	 Paying	the	monthly	pensioner	payroll
•	 Query	and	data	management
•	 Member	education	and	publications	

(in conjunction with the Corporate 
Communications department)

•	 Trust	services

1 2
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The department’s core functions are 
discussed in more detail below:

enrolment

The department deals with both current 
members and new members. As the 
government (the employer) adds new 
employees into their system, this is 
reflected in the monthly contribution 
schedule submitted to BPOPF. Along with 
the contribution amounts, the schedule 
details the static data of all existing and 
new members, including their Omang 
number, date of birth, date of joining the 
service, and other pertinent information.

Contributions

Members contribute 5% of their gross 
salary, and the government contributes 
15%, making the total contribution equal to 
20% of employees’ gross salary. Members 
may opt to make additional voluntary 
contributions to their pension fund if they 
choose. The department is responsible for 
receiving such contributions, allocating the 
contributions to each member’s account, 
and conducting monthly reconciliations. 

After receiving contributions and paying 
out claims, the department makes sure 
that the excess - being the net amount 
remaining after making claim payments  
- is passed on to the Investment 
department.

Claims

Member Note: 
For all claims received, the department 
needs to validate and verify data to ensure 
that all details are correct. 

The first step is to check the member’s 
contributions, the transfer value for 
members who joined service before 
inception of the Fund, and the member’s 
static data, such as date-of-birth, Omang 
number, date of joining the service and 
date of joining the Fund.

The second step is pass the details on to 
BURS for tax clearance. The Income Tax 
Act stipulates how the Fund should pay 
out the different types of claims. Every 
claim has to be submitted to BURS who 
will either issue a tax clearance if there 
are no tax arrears, or will withhold the 
claim if the member has tax arrears. 

members are therefore encouraged to 
submit their tax returns every year to 
avoid delays in the claims process.

There are several categories of claims, the 
most important being:
1. Resignation
2. Retirement
3. Death 

These are outlined in more detail below:
Resignation (Before Retirement Age) 
Should a member choose to resign from 

their government position before reaching 
the stipulated retirement age, the claim 
needs to be processed according to the 
Pension and Provident Funds Act, the 
Income Tax Act (Superannuation), the 
NBFIRA Act and the relevant BPOPF rules 
and guidelines.

Retirement

The Income Tax Act stipulates that upon 
retirement, a member can elect to be paid 
out up to one third of the total claim as a 
cash lump sum. The remaining two thirds 
(or more, as the member chooses) must 
be used to purchase an approved annuity 
or pension plan, unless such an annuity 
would pay out an annual pension of less 
than P5000, in which case the full amount 
may be paid out in cash. BPOPF utilises 
an independent broker to assist retiring 
members in purchasing a suitable annuity 
or pension plan.

death

When a member passes on, the Fund has to 
pay the member’s benefits to the rightful 
beneficiaries in accordance with the 
Pension and Provident Funds Act. In order 
to ensure that the rightful beneficiaries 
are the recipients of the benefits, BPOPF 
conducts a social investigation. 

It the responsibility of the Fund’s Trustees 
to ensure that payment is made to the 
rightful beneficiaries; and this is why it 
is necessary for a social investigation to 
be conducted. Only after the successful 
conclusion of the social investigation 
can the benefits be apportioned to the 
beneficiaries.

1 3
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The Fund was established in 2001, and 
took on board government employees, 
some of whom joined the public service 
at its establishment. These employees 
were given the option of moving to BPOPF 
or remaining with the old Defined Benefit 
Scheme. For those who opted to join 
the Fund, the government provided the 
transfer value of their Scheme Benefit, an 
amount based on their length of service. 

Many members’ queries relate to the 
correctness of their transfer value. Many 
compare themselves to their friends and 
colleagues without realising that the 
transfer value calculation takes many 
factors into account, including age, the 
date of joining the public service, the date 
of joining the Fund, to name but a few. 

All queries are followed up by verifying 
information with the employer, which is 
then transferred to the Actuary who makes 
the necessary calculations to normalise 
the member account. The results of the 
query are then communicated to the 
member concerned.

In this way, the department conducts 
constant data cleaning prompted by 
members’ queries and claims, ensuring 
that the Fund retains data integrity, and 
that member data are constantly checked 
for accuracy. 

Regional offices play a vital role in query 
management, as they conduct data 
verification before claims are paid out.

nomination of Beneficiaries

The relevant legislation stipulates that 
the nomination of beneficiaries form 
serves merely as a guide to the Trustees; 
and upon investigation, if there is any 
information that is at variance with the 
details on the form, it has to be verified 
with the deceased’s family. 

The Fund recognises two types of 
dependents: legal dependents and factual 
dependents. There should be proof that 
the member’s death adversely affects 
any factual dependent financially. The 
Fund follows an established hierarchy, 
under which legal dependents are usually 
first priority, and factual dependents 
are evaluated before being included 
as beneficiaries. Factors considered 
in determining the eligibility of factual 
dependents include age, financial stability, 
and proof of dependency on the deceased 
at the time of the member’s death.

Pension benefits are not considered to 
be part of the deceased’s estate, and are 
apportioned separately.

Query management and data 
management 

Query	 and	 data	management	 are	 linked.	
Queries	 are	 received	 from	 clients	 from	
time to time, relating to static data or 
misallocated fund credits, balances, etc., 
and such queries can only be resolved 
with reference to sound, correct data.

Fund Administration Report [continued]

member education

It is the Fund’s responsibility to ensure that 
members are aware of BPOPF’s products 
and services, and the Fund Administration 
department is in charge of this function, 
which it conducts in conjunction with the 
Corporate Communications department. 

Member communication consultants are 
based at the regional offices to ensure that 
they are accessible to members throughout 
the country. The consultants go out into the 
community to receive member queries, to 
disseminate information about the Fund, to 
conduct workshops and to attend corporate 
events to increase member reach.

The Fund also regularly updates members 
through its newsletter, Peeletso.

Detailed annual Benefit Statements for 
each member are produced by the data 
management and sent out to members. All 
members are urged not to just look at the 
figures but to read their entire statement 
and to check the accuracy of all the various 
details. By checking that all the information 
on their statements is correct, members 
can ensure that the Fund has all their 
particulars accurately stored on the system, 
allowing for the swift and easy processing of 
any claims.

trust services

The department is responsible for trust 
services, particularly in relation to minor 
and mentally challenged beneficiaries 
in the case of a death claim. In all such 
cases, detailed investigation and home 
visits by counsellors ensure proper usage 
of the deceased member’s benefits.
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during the year under review. There is 
also strong appetite for Infrastructure 
Investment in Botswana. The Fund’s 
intention had been to play an active role in 
local infrastructure investment during the 
previous year, but this was not practicable 
and has been prioritised as the main focus 
for the next two financial years (2016 - 
2018).

While investments in local private equity 
have already started at a steady pace, 
and are gaining momentum, equity 
investments are not on the same scale as 
the envisioned infrastructure Investments 
but will nonetheless be pursued 
aggressively in the coming years. 

The outlook is that the market will continue 
to be volatile, but this is not expected 
to negatively affect the portfolio’s 
performance going forward. In fact, many 
very sound investments are possible in a 
volatile market, as has been illustrated 
during the year under review.

iNVEsTmENT RePORT

the Fund’s investments are divided 

between four separate portfolios, 

these being the active member and 

deferred Pensioner Portfolio, the 

Pre-Retirement switch Portfolio, 

the with-Profit Pensioner Portfolio 

and the without-Profit (non-Profit) 

Pensioner Portfolio. each portfolio 

has distinct characteristics, a specific 

purpose, and performs differently 

from the others. It is important to 

consider this when comparing the 

different portfolios’ performance, 

as these would not be like-for-like 

comparisons.

The 2015 - 2016 financial year has seen the Fund’s investments provide very satisfactory returns, despite 
the uncertain macroeconomic environment and considerable volatility in the market. 

The performance of the different 
portfolios, as at 31st March 2016, is outlined 
below:

The Active and Deferred Member Portfolio
Although the return did not match the 
exceptional level achieved in 2014 - 2015, 
the Active Member portfolio strongly 
outperformed the benchmark with a 
4.25% return on investment for the year. 
This is 0.31% above the 3.94% benchmark 
for this portfolio, and is a very satisfactory 
result considering the current volatility in 
the market, which is subject to event risk, 
such as Brexit and other unforeseeable 
global influences. Despite the unstable 
market conditions, the Portfolio was well 
placed to chase performance within these 
challenging parameters

Two investment areas will receive priority 
in the coming year: Africa-specific 
investments and local infrastructure 
investments. There is considerable 
appetite for Africa-specific investment, 
and this was not taken advantage of 
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the Pre-Retirement 
switch Portfolio

The Pre-Retirement Switch portfolio is 
designed to preserve members’ capital as 
they approach retirement. The portfolio 
is therefore conservative by nature, 
focussing on ensuring that retirees are 
guaranteed an adequate pension. The 
portfolio is aimed at those who will be 
retiring in no more than three years’ time, 
and has a return objective of preserving 
capital, rather than of high growth. 
Members nearing retirement should 
consider the Pre-Retirement Switch if 
they want to preserve their accumulated 
capital without the risk of playing market 
timing. The portfolio provides steady 
growth with low risk. 

While the portfolio performed beyond 
expectation in 2015 – 2016, even 
outperforming the less conservative 
Active Member portfolio with return 
of 6.12%, this achievement should be 
regarded as an exception rather than 
the norm. The outlook for the portfolio is 
moderate, steady growth going forward.

Members should note that the exceptional 
performance of the portfolio in the year 
under review should not be a factor 
in their decision to move to the Pre-
Retirement Switch portfolio. The decision 
to move should be taken with due 
deliberation and professional advice, and 
should not be based on emotion, but on a 
clear retirement plan. Once a member has 
chosen to switch, the decision cannot be 
reversed.

Members have appointed Trustees who 
make investment decisions in terms 
of the Fund’s investment strategy, and 
individual members do not have a say 
in how the Fund chooses to invest the 
member’s money. However, members 
with three years or less remaining before 
retirement should consider opting for the 
Pre-Retirement Switch portfolio if they 
feel they have reached the time to avoid 
risk and to guarantee the pension they 
have worked so long and hard to secure.

the with-Profit Pension Portfolio

The With-Profit Pension portfolio declared 
a fairly modest return on investment 
of 4.27%, which outperformed the 
benchmark return of 3.05%. As this is a 
pensioner portfolio, and pensioners are 
less willing to take risks, the member 
profits from good performance but is 
guaranteed to receive a predetermined 
minimum figure - usually the monthly 
figure given on retirement - even if the 
portfolio underperforms. Consequently 
the portfolio is fairly conservative as it has 
to ensure that it preserves pensioners’ 
capital while generating a steady return.

the without-Profit 
Pension Portfolio

The Without-Profit Pension portfolio 
incorporates an annual growth figure 
as agreed with the member. The agreed 
growth can be 0%, 2.5%, 5% or 7.5% and risk 
does not lie with the member.

The portfolio is healthy, and the funding 
level, or the relative value of the portfolio’s 

assets and liabilities, is robust. The 
portfolio return was 3.04% versus the 
benchmark return of 2.95%.

Looking ahead

The outlook for the years ahead is 
both exciting and challenging. There 
are some excellent investment 
opportunities, particularly in Africa and 
in local infrastructure, but these are 
not always readily accessible. There 
are many challenges associated with 
properly structuring these investments, 
as some are in the unlisted space; 
and the information available to make 
certain investment decisions in Africa is 
not always as comprehensive as in the 
developed markets.

As the Fund ventures into these new 
investment areas, members are alerted 
to the inevitable “J-curve” that will 
be experienced. Typically, Greenfield 
investments initially offer no return, 
but will grow as the project eventually 
becomes fully operational. Patience 
is therefore required to allow these 
investments to mature, and members are 
urged to adopt a long-term outlook.
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COrPOraTE GOVErNaNCE RePORT

1 Board of trustees statement on 
governance

 The Board of Trustees of the Botswana 
Public Officers Pension Fund (BPOPF, 
the Fund) reaffirms its continued 
commitment to good corporate 
governance in line with legislation, the 
Fund’s rules, national policies, and best 
practice codes. Governance practices 
and principles adopted by the Board 
of Trustees ensure that rights and 
responsibilities are appropriately 
distributed internally, and that the Fund 
remains geared towards attaining its 
goals in a sustainable manner for the 
benefit of members.

2 Composition of the Board

 The Board of Trustees is constituted 
in terms of the Fund Rules and aims 
to achieve a balanced number of 
Employer and Member Trustees 
together with one Pensioner Trustee 
and one External Independent Trustee. 
Employer Trustees are appointed 
by the Botswana Government while 
Member Trustees are appointed by 
recognised labour movements. The 
intention is to ensure that the Board 
composition reflects the constituency 
base, stakeholder interests and 
benefits from diverse views while 
remaining efficient and effective.

The following were the Trustees of the Fund as at the end of the financial year 2015 - 
2016:

 Constituency Effective Date
Employer Trustees  
Mr Carter N Morupisi (Chairman) Office of the President  30/05/2013
Brigadier Charles Nkele Botswana Defence Force 05/06/2013
Mr Solomon Mantswe Botswana Police Service 30/05/2013
Mrs Emma Peloetletse Ministry of Finance and Development 01/10/2013
 Planning
Dr Kolaatamo C S Malefho National Strategy Office 30/05/2013
Mr Ikwatlhaeng Bagopi Ministry of Defence, Justice and Security 30/05/2013
Ms Keneilwe Bogosing Prisons 12/03/2015

Member Trustees  
Mr Topias Marenga BOPEU 19/01/2010
Mr Tobokani Rari BOSETU 16/11/2010
Mr Ketlhalefile N M Motshegwa BLLAWU 22/04/2011
Mr Andrew Motsamai BOPEU 22/02/2007
Mr Kwenasebele C Modukanele BOSETU 21/11/2014
Mr Betshobatsile Otsile NALCGPWU 07/06/2015

Alternate Employer Trustees  
Mr Kago Ramokate Ministry of Youth, Sports and Culture 15/05/2013
Mrs Lifentse Likokoto Ministry of Finance and Development Planning 01/10/2013
Mr Molefi Keaja Ministry of Local Government 01/10/2013
Ms Goaba Mosienyane Office of the President 28/03/2006
Ms Kealeboga Moruti Botswana Police Service 25/04/2008
Mr Anthony Mokento Prisons 12/03/2015
Ms Shanaz El-Halabi Ministry of Health 28/08/2013

Alternate Member Trustees  
Mr Ikanyeng Moshabi BOPEU 22/10/2010
Mrs Neo Joel NALCGPWU 17/06/2015
Mr Moses Monnatsie BTU 22/02/2015
Mr Disang Mokwape BLLAWU 22/05/2010
Ms Naledi Ratsoma BTU 12/03/2015
Mr Bahenyi Ntswakae NALCGPWU 03/03/2015
Mr Innocent M Mannathoko BOSETU 12/03/2015
Mr Martin Gabobake BOPEU 12/03/2015

Pensioner Trustees 
Mr Ishmael Selebogo BCSPA 04/03/2008
Ms Catherine Kgomanyane BCSPA 04/03/2008
(Alternate) 
Withdrawals  
Ms Goaba Mosienyane Directorate of Public Service Management 
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3 the Role of the Board 
 of trustees

3.1 The Board provides oversight and 
strategic leadership to the Fund. It 
exercises ultimate responsibility and 
is therefore the primary governance 
structure. The Board sits regularly, 
at least once every three months, 
to discharge its responsibilities. It 
also sits on a special basis as and 
when required. The Board has set up 
Board Committees with clear terms 
of reference to provide guidance 
focus on areas which require constant 
monitoring. 

3.2 Information, Training & 
 Trustee Empowerment
 The Board is cognisant of the need 

to ensure that it always has the 
capacity and knowledge necessary 
to oversee a world-class fund. It has 
therefore put in place measures to 
induct new members and provide 
training and skills development to 
all Trustees. Throughout the year 
Trustees attended a variety of training 
courses, seminars and workshops 
as identified by the Fund. They also 
attend conferences in order to share 
experiences and knowledge with 
other industry participants, thus 
remaining at the forefront of relevant 
developments. Trustees are provided 
with meeting materials well in time 

to enable them to discharge their 
fiduciary responsibilities and are 
alerted to key information which may 
affect their decision-making process. 

3.3 Remuneration of Trustees
 The form and amount of Board 

Members’ compensation is 
determined by the Board of Trustees 
after recommendations from the 
Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee, within any limitations 
imposed by the Rules of the Fund 
and in accordance with the Fund’s 
Remuneration Policy. 

 In terms of Rule 12.1.2 as amended 
by Amendment No.6 of the Rules of 
the Fund, Employer Trustees and 
their alternates are not entitled to 
any remuneration for their services. 
Therefore, only Trustees in the 
employee constituency drew sitting 
allowances for attending meetings 
of the Fund, at a rate of P3 000 per 
sitting per member and P3 600 per 
committee chairperson. Trustees who 
travelled from outside Gaborone, the 
principal venue of meetings, were 
paid mileage fees. The table below 
summarises Trustees’ remuneration 
for the period under review.

Name of Trustee                  remuneration

Mr T Marenga 55 200.00
Mr T Rari 45 600.00
Mr K N M Motshegwa 49 200.00
Mr A Motsamai 27 000.00
Mr I Kenosi 36 000.00
Mr K C Modukanele 21 759.60
Mr I D Selebogo 133 092.00
Mr I Moshabi 12 000.00
Ms N Ratsoma 21 957.60
Mrs N Joel 39 000.00
Mr M Monnatsie 40 014.00
Mr D K C Mokwape 51 594.00
Mr B Otsile 86 562.40
Mr M O Gabobake 33 000.00
Mr B Ntswakae 15 000.00
Mrs C Kgomanyane 18 000.00
Mr I M Mannathoko 30 684.00
Mr J P S Tshukudu 36 275.80
TOTAL 751 939.40

3.4 Declaration of Gifts 
 The Fund adopted a Gift and 

Entertainment Policy for its Trustees 
and Staff. The main objective of the 
policy is to set out a procedure for 
the receipt of gifts and invitations 
to entertainment and hospitality 
events. These invitations may be from 
business associates, clients and other 
industry players. The policy covers 
the acceptance; approval; recording 
and disclosure of such gifts and 
invitations. This policy aims to prevent 
any situation that could compromise 
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4.5 Risk Committee
 The purpose of the Risk Committee 

is to discharge the oversight function 
of the Board of Trustees over the 
Fund’s risk management matters 
in accordance with the Rules, Risk 
Management Policy and other 
applicable policies and regulations.

4.6 Marketing & Communications 
Committee

 This Committee is entrusted with 
the with the oversight function over 
internal and external communications 
matters of the Fund in accordance 
with the Rules, applicable policies and 
laws.

5 Code of Conduct

 In order to promote ethical and 
responsible decision-making by the 
Trustees, the Board of Trustees has 
adopted a Code of Conduct. It forms 
a statement as to how the Trustees 
and Service providers are to conduct 
themselves in the discharge of their 
respective functions. The Code of 
Conduct emphasises the important 
fiduciary duties of the Trustees such 
as the duty to act in good faith, avoid 
any conflict of interest and to act with 
due care and diligence. The Code also 
provides guidance to the Trustees on 
how to manage their relationship with 
service providers and stakeholders.

COrPOraTE GOVErNaNCE RePORT

the independence of the Fund, create 
a perception of conflict, or create an 
impairment of judgment in the internal 
decision making process. The policy 
clearly identifies how these should be 
disclosed within the respective values 
and thresholds. A quarterly report is 
prepared and presented to the Board 
on the declarations for the quarter as 
well as for the year.

4 Board Committees

 The Board has delegated certain 
functions to well-structured sub-
committees but without abdicating 
its own responsibilities. The Chief 
Executive Officer / Principal Officer is a 
member of all committees other than 
the Audit Committee. Each Committee 
has terms of reference that define 
its mandate. The following structures 
make up the sub-committees of the 
Board: 

4.1 Audit Committee
 The purpose of this Committee is to 

discharge the oversight function of the 
Board of Trustees over audit matters 
relating to the Fund. The Committee’s 
function is to oversee and review the 
following: 
•	 The	financial	reporting	process
•	 Internal	control	systems
•	 The	audit	process
•	 The	process	for	monitoring	

compliance within the risk and 
legal framework.

4.2 Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee

 This Committee is entrusted with 
all matters relating to ethical 
management of human resources in 
alignment with the applicable labour 
laws, policies and leading practices.

4.3 Benefits Committee
 The purpose of this Committee is to 

discharge the oversight function of 
the Board of Trustees over matters 
relating to administration of members’ 
benefits. The process includes but is 
not limited to the following functions:
• Member Data Management
• Administration of death benefits
• Payment of member benefits 

arising from deaths, retirements 
and withdrawals

• Beneficiary Trust Services
• Member Education and 

Communication.

4.4 Finance and Investment Committee
 The Finance and Investment 

Committee is entrusted with the 
oversight function of the Board of 
Trustees over finance and investment 
matters of the Fund in accordance 
with the Rules, Investment Policy 
Statement (IPS) and other applicable 
policies and regulations.
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5.1 Legal Compliance
 The Fund operates in accordance with 

provisions of the Pension & Provident 
Funds Act, the Non-Bank Financial 
Institutions Regulatory Authority 
(NBFIRA) Act, and other applicable 
legislation. In 2012 Parliament passed 
the Retirement Funds Act, but at the 
time of writing the Regulations have 
not yet come into effect. 

6 executive management

The Principal Officer/ Chief Executive 
Officer, with the assistance of the 
Executive Management team, has a 
collective responsibility for implementing 
and operationalising the Fund’s corporate 
strategy as approved by the Board 
to ensure that the Fund successfully 
discharges its mandate.

7 service Providers

The following are the various key service 
providers appointed by the Board of 
Trustees: 

Local Asset Managers
Allan Gray Botswana
Botswana Insurance Fund Management
Afena Capital Botswana
Investec Asset Managers Botswana
African Alliance Botswana
Fleming Asset Management
Capital Management Botswana
Messidor 

Offshore Asset Managers
Epoch Investments
Harding Loevner
Investec Asset Management
Threadneedle Asset Management
Vontobel Asset Management
Brandywine Asset Management 
Franklin Templeton Investments
Rubrics Asset Management
Sarasin and Partners
Stenham Asset Management
Harith General Partners
Vantage Capital
Morgan Stanley

Asset Consultants
Novare Asset Consultants

Fund Administrator
Alexander Forbes 

Offshore Investments Administrator
Moore Capital Management 

Custodians
First National Bank of Botswana (local)
BNP Paribas (offshore)

Auditors
KPMG

Attorneys
Monthe Marumo & Company 
(incorporating Molatlhegi & Associates)
Minchin & Kelly (Botswana)

Actuary
Deloitte Actuarial Solutions
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BOarD OF TRusTees

 Dr K. Malefho 
Employer Trustee

B. Molefe
CEO/ Principal Officer

Brigadier C. Nkele | Employer 
Trustee

C. N. Morupisi  |  Board Chairman
Employer Trustee

K. S. Bogosing | Employer Trustee

B. Otsile | Member Trustee

A. Motsamai | Member Trustee

T. Rari | Member Trustee
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E. Peloetletse | Employer Trustee

K. Modukanele | Member Trustee

K. M. N. Motshegwa | Member 
Trustee

I. Kenosi | Member Trustee

I. Bagopi | Employer Trustee

I. Selebogo | Pensioner Trustee J. Tshukudu | Member Trustee

S. Mantswe | Employer Trustee

T. Marenga | Member Trustee
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EXECUTiVE ManageMenT

Gaolatlhe Otsetswe
Fund Administration Director

Matshidiso Monkutlwatsi
Head of Internal Audit

Amantle Kerebotswe
Performance Co-ordinator

Kwenantle Otukile
Board Secretary/Legal Services 

Manager

Boitumelo Molefe |  CEO/ Principal Officer
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Bedu Tlhabologang
Corporate Communication Manager

Neo Keboletse
Information Technology Director

Kagiso Potongwane
Human Capital & Administration 

Director

Moemedi Malindah
Investment & Portfolio Director

Kebagaise Segakise
Finance Director

 Karabo Luke
Risk & Compliance Manager
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The Botswana Public Officers Pension Fund (the “Fund”) is a legal entity, which was created in accordance with the provisions of the 
Pensions and Provident Fund act, 1987 as well as the associated Pensions and Provident Funds Regulations, 1988.

The Fund is a defined contribution pension fund for the eligible citizen employees of the government of Botswana.

PRinCiPaL OFFiCeR
Mrs B Molefe

RegisTeReD OFFiCe
Plot 203, independence avenue, gaborone

auDiTORs
KPMg

FunD aDMinisTRaTOR
alexander Forbes Financial services Botswana (Pty) Ltd

invesTMenT ManageRs
Botswana insurance Fund Management Limited
Fleming asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd
investec asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd
Coronation Fund Managers (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd
stanbic investment Management services (Pty) Ltd
Messidor investments (Pty) Ltd
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd
african alliance Botswana Ltd
Capital Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd
epoch investment Partners inc.
sarasin & Partners LLP
vontobel asset Management inc.
Harith general Partners Proprietary Limited

CusTODians
First national Bank of Botswana Limited
BnP Paribas securities services sCa, Jersey Branch.

aTTORneYs
Monthe Marumo attorneys incorporating Molatlhegi and 
assosciates
Minchin & Kelly (Botswana)

BanKeRs
First national Bank of Botswana Limited
stanbic Bank Botswana Limited
Banc aBC Botswana Limited
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aCtUaRy

Deloitte Actuarial and Insurance Services (Pty) Ltd

BoaRd oF tRUstees

NAME  DESIGNATION  APPOINTED  RESIGNED

1.  mr Cn morupisi  Chairman/ employer Trustee – Office of the President  30/04/2013

2.  mr I selebogo  Pensioner Trustee - BCsPa  04/03/2008

3.  ms C Kgomanyane  alternate Pensioner Trustee - BCsPa  10/04/2012

4.  mr t marenga  Member Trustee - BOPeu  19/01/2010

5.  mr Kmn motshegwa  Member Trustee - BLLawu  22/04/2011

6.  mr a motsamai  Member Trustee - BOPeu  22/02/2007

7.  mr K modukanele  Member Trustee - BOseTu  17/06/2015

8.  mr dKC mokwape  alternate Member Trustee - BLLawu  22/05/2010

9.  mr mo gabobake  alternate Member Trustee - BOPeu  19/02/2015

10.  mr m monnatsie  alternate Member Trustee - BTu  19/02/2015

11.  mr I mannathoko  alternate Member Trustee - BTu  19/02/2015

12.  ms nd Joel  alternate Member Trustee - naLCgPwu  17/06/2015

13.  mr I L R moshabi  alternate Member Trustee - BOPeu  19/02/2015

14.  ms n Ratsoma  alternate Member Trustee - BTu  19/02/2015

15.  mr B ntswakae  alternate Member Trustee - naLCgPwu  17/06/2015

16.  mr t Rari  substantive Member Trustee - BOseTu  30/11/2014

17.  mr B otsile  substantive Member Trustee-naLCgPwu  17/06/2015

18.  mr I Kenosi  substantive Member Trustee - BTu  19/02/2015

19.  mr J P s tshukudu  substantive Member Trustee - BTu  19/02/2015

20.  Brigadier C nkele  employer Trustee - BDF  05/06/2013

21.  mr s mantswe  employer Trustee - Botswana Police  30/04/2013

22.  mrs e Peloetletse  employer Trustee - Ministry of Finance
  & Development planning  01/10/2013

23.  mr KCs malefho  employer Trustee – national strategy Office  30/04/2013

24.  mr I Bagopi  employer Trustee - Ministry of Defence, Justice & security  30/04/2013

25.  ms g mosienyane  alternate employer Trustee – Office of the President  01/10/2013  05/05/2015

26.  ms Kn moruti  alternate employer Trustee - Police  30/04/2013

27.  ms L Likokoto  alternate employer Trustee – Ministry of Finance& Development Planning  30/04/2013

28.  mr m Keaja  alternate employer Trustee - Ministry of Local government  01/10/2013

29.  ms Ks Bogosing  substantive employer Trustee – Botswana Prison service  19/02/2015

30.  ms eL Halabi  alternate employer Trustee - Ministry of Health  28/08/2013

31.  mr Ks Ramokate  alternate employer Trustee - Ministry of Youth, sports & Culture  13/09/2013

32.  mr m mokento  alternate employer Trustee – Botswana Prison service  19/02/2015

33.  mrs LP moakofhi  acting CeO / Principal officer  18/02/2013  30/06/2015

34.  ms B molefe  CeO / Principal officer  01/07/2015
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sTaTEmENT OF rEsPONsiBiLiTY BY THE BOarD OF TrUsTEEs 
anD THe PRinCiPaL OFFiCeR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

The Board of Trustees and the Principal Officer of Botswana Public Officers’ Pension Fund are responsible for the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and all other information presented therewith. Their responsibility includes the 
maintenance of true and fair financial records and the preparation of annual financial statements in accordance with international 
Financial Reporting standards, the rules of the fund and the provisions of the Pension and Provident Funds act, 1987.

The fund’s administrator maintains systems of internal control which are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the records 
accurately reflect its transactions and to provide protection against serious misuse or loss of fund assets. The Board of Trustees along 
with the Principal Officer are responsible for the implementation, maintenance and monitoring of these systems of internal control. 
nothing has come to the attention of the Trustees or the Principal Officer to indicate that any significant breakdown in the functioning 
of these systems has occurred during the year under review.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements. The Board of Trustees have no reason to 
believe that the fund will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources.

Our external auditors conduct an examination of the financial statements in conformity with international standards on auditing, which 
include tests of transactions and selective tests of internal accounting controls. Regular meetings are held between the Board of 
Trustees, the fund administrator and our external auditors to review matters relating to internal controls and financial reporting. The 
external auditors have unrestricted access to the Board of Trustees.

aPPRovaL oF annUaL FInanCIaL statements
The financial statements on pages 31 to 65 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 22 september 2016 and are signed on its behalf.

…………………………………………….………………………………….    …………………………………………….………………………………….
CHaiRMan        PRinCiPaL OFFiCeR

gaborone
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KPMg, Chartered accountants
audit
Plot 67977, Off Tlokweng Road,
Fairgrounds Office Park
PO Box 1519, gaborone, Botswana
Telephone: +267 391 2400
Fax:           +267 397 5281
web:          http://www.kpmg.com/

Independent auditor’s report
To the trustees of the Botswana Public Officers’ Pension Fund 

we have audited the financial statements of Botswana Public Officers’ Pension Fund, which comprise the statement of assets 
available for benefits at 31 March 2016, the statements of changes in net assets available for benefits, and cash flows for the 
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements, as set out on pages 
4 to 43.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
international Financial Reporting standards, and in the manner required by the Pension and Provident Funds act, 1987 and for 
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. we conducted our audit in 
accordance with international standards on auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
in our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the net assets available for benefits of Botswana Public 
Officers’ Pension Fund at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with international Financial Reporting standards and in the manner required by the Pension and Provident Funds act, 1987.

KPmg
Certified auditors           gaborone
Practicing member: ag. Devlin (19960060.23)          28 september 2016
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2016 2015
Notes Pula Pula

Members’ statutory contributions  1  600 006 103  5 49 087 351
employer contributions  1 1 807 195 254  1 651 255 809
Members’ voluntary contributions  1  3 076 730  2 151 211
Transfer in from other funds   824 006  5 79 761
Transfer in - Botswana government   351 245 627  -
BDF Technical allowance   -  4 458 273
Release of provision made against transfer value  12  -  1 17 291 464
total income from members and employer   2 762 347 720  2 324 823 869

Rental income     20 228 929  1 8 510 971
Profit on disposal of investments  2  4 918 702 161  5 235 161 969
Dividend income  3  762 474 853  5 57 102 329
interest income  4  654 628 752  718 723 539
Other income   4 532 919  -
total income from investments   6 360 567 614  6 529 498 808
net fair value (loss)/gain from financial instruments  5  (3 775 028 371)  3 85 132 644
net gain from investments   2 585 539 243  6 914 631 452

Management expenses  6  (392 828 949)  (463 281 308)
total surplus before benefits   4 955 058 014  8 776 174 013

Monthly pensions   (497 545 533)  (470 363 383)
Lump sums accrued on withdrawal   (58 207 245)  (57 511 962)
Lump sums accrued on death   (179 408 944)  (127 223 251)
Lump sums accrued on retirement   (1 703 249 353)  (846 190 016)
total benefits to members   (2 438 411 075)  (1 501 288 612)

Transfer to pension account  8  (56 527 845)  (356 472 200)
surplus for the year before transfer to reserves   2 460 119 094  6 918 413 201

transfers for the year
To reserve account  7  99 428 445  (393 698 488)

net fund surplus for the year   2 559 547 539  6 524 714 713

members funds at beginning of year   43 870 059 825  37 345 345 112

members funds at end of year   46 429 607 364  43 870 059 825

sTaTEmENT OF CHaNGEs iN NET assETs avaiLaBLe FOR BeneFiTs 
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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sTaTEmENT OF assETs avaiLaBLe FOR BeneFiTs
as at 31 maRCH 2016

2016 2015
Notes Pula Pula

non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  10  8 507 611  5 999 759
investments at fair value through profit or loss  11  54 585 240 806  51 708 767 042
  54 593 748 417  51 714 766 801

Current assets
Member transfer values receivable  12  -  428 181 375
accounts receivable   10 659 042  8 755 031
Cash and cash equivalents  13  412 928 603  265 116 145
  423 587 645  702 052 551

total assets   55 017 336 062  52 416 819 352

Funds

active and deferred members’ fund account   46 429 607 364  43 870 059 825
Reserve account  7  1 170 054 785  1 269 483 230
total reserves and funds   47 599 662 149  45 139 543 055

non current liabilities
Pensioners’ fund account  8
- not for profit pensioner   1 515 686 614  1 503 856 757
- with profit pensioner   4 459 079 512  4 394 757 379
  5 974 766 126  5 898 614 136

Current liabilities
Pensioners’ fund account  8
- not for profit pensioner   125 215 788  136 943 372
- with profit pensioner   341 055 643  348 952 204
Benefits payable  14  960 229 357  863 371 842
accounts payable   16 406 999  29 394 743
  1 442 907 787  1 378 662 161

total liabilities   7 417 673 913  7 277 276 297

total reserves, funds and liabilities   55 017 336 062  52 416 819 352
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sTaTEmENT OF CasH FLOws 
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

2016 2015
Notes Pula Pula

Cash flows from operating activities
surplus for the year before transfers to reserves   2 460 119 094  6 918 413 201
Profit on disposal of investments (note 2)   (4 918 702 161)  (5 235 161 969)
unrealised net loss/ (gain) from investment securities (note 5)   3 775 028 371  (385 132 644)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (note 10)   10 396 109  8 674 630
Monthly pensions   497 545 533  470 363 383
Lump sums accrued on death   179 408 944  127 223 251
Lump sums accrued on withdrawal   58 207 245  57 511 962
Lump sums accrued on retirement   1 703 249 353  846 190 016
  3 765 252 488  2 808 081 830

Movement in accounts receivable   (1 904 011)  (3 212 689)
Movement in member transfer value receivable   428 181 375  (117 291 464)
Movement in derivative financial instruments   -  (1 942 091)
Movement in pension liabilities   56 527 845  356 472 200
Movements in accounts payable   (12 987 744)  11 712 020
Movements in benefits paid:

Monthly pensions   (497 545 533)  (470 363 383)
Lump sum payments on death   (150 522 678)  (132 477 786)
Lump sum payments on withdrawal   (44 793 122)  (58 194 719)
Lump sum payments on retirement   (1 648 692 227)  (1 353 948 767)

net cash generated from operating activities   1 893 516 393  1 038 835 151

Investing activities
additions to investments   (23 387 656 379)  (21 683 354 604)
Proceeds from sale of investments   21 654 856 405  20 675 395 936
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (note 10)   (12 903 961)  (11 244 139)

net cash flows utilised in investing activities   (1 745 703 935)  (1 019 202 807)

net movement in cash and cash equivalents   147 812 458  19 632 344

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   265 116 145  245 483 801

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   13 412 928 603  265 116 145

3 3
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sUmmarY OF signiFiCanT aCCOunTing POLiCies
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

1.  Reporting entity

 Botswana Public Officers’ Pension Fund is an approved 
Pension Fund registered and domiciled in Botswana under 
the Pensions and Provident Fund act, 1987.

 The investment activities of the Fund are managed by various 
Fund Managers as outlined in the general information section 
and the administration of the Fund is delegated to alexander 
Forbes Financial services (Pty) Ltd.

2.  Basis of accounting

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with international Financial Reporting standards (“iFRs”). The 
financial statements of the Fund were authorised for issue by 
the Board of Trustees on 22 september 2016.

2.  Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Botswana Pula, 
which is the Fund’s functional currency. “Functional currency” 
is the currency of the primary environment in which the Fund 
operates. if indicators of the primary economic environment 
are mixed, then management uses its judgement to determine 
the functional currency that most faithfully represents the 
economic effect of the underlying transactions, events 
and conditions. The majority of the Fund’s investments and 
transactions are denominated in Pula. Pension contributions 
and benefits paid out are determined on net assets value, 
received and paid out in Pula. a significant amount of the 
expenses, including management fees, custodian fees and 
administration fees, are denominated and paid out in Pula. 
accordingly, management has determined the functional 
currency of the Fund is Pula.

 all amounts are rounded to the nearest Pula, unless otherwise 
indicated.

3.  Use of estimates and judgements

 in preparing these financial statements, management has 
made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

 estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised 
prospectively.

 information about assumptions and estimation uncertainty 
that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 
adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2016 is included in 
note 11 and relates to the determination of fair values of 
financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs.

4. Benefits payable

 Benefits payable are accounted for on the accrual basis 
and include all valid claims notified to the Fund during the 
financial year.

 Benefits include lump sum payments on withdrawal, death 
and retirement.

 when a member retires from service after reaching 
retirement age, one third of the balance accrued in the 
member account is paid in the form of cash as lump sum 
payment on retirement. The balance is transferred into an 
annuity account either within the Fund or to an external 
annuity provider, in which case this is classified as lump sum 
payment on withdrawal.

 Lump sum entitlements are accounted for on the accrual 
basis when the member becomes entitled thereto through 
compliance with the rules of the Fund.
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sUmmarY OF signiFiCanT aCCOunTing POLiCies
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

4.  Benefits payable [continued]

 The Fund operates two types of annuities, vis participating 
annuities and nonparticipating annuities and payments made 
out of these annuities are disclosed as monthly pensions in 
the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits.

	 Participating	(with	profit)	annuities
 The liabilities are equated to the fair value of the retrospectively 

accumulated underlying assets. This is equivalent to the best 
estimate prospective liability calculation allowing for future 
investment returns. Members’ entitlements emerge in line 
with return on investments less expenses incurred consistent 
with work done and risk borne over the lifetime of annuities.

	 Non-participating	annuity	business
 non-participating annuity instalments and future expenses 

in respect of these instalments are discounted at market 
interest rates based on the bond yield curve at the valuation 
date, reduced by the prescribed and additional margin, as well 
as investment management expenses. all profits or losses 
accrue to the members when incurred.

 annuities are paid to members in the form of monthly 
pensions, which are accounted for on the accrual basis.

5.  Financial assets and financial liabilities

 Classification
 The Fund classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities 

in the following categories:
-  at fair value through profit or loss: debt securities and 

equity investments. Financial assets and liabilities in this 
category are classified as current assets if expected to 
be settled within 12 months, otherwise they are classified 
as non-current.

-  loans and receivables: cash and cash equivalents. They are 
included in current assets, except for maturities greater 
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 
These are classified as non-current assets. The Fund’s 

loans and receivables comprise ‘transfers receivables’, 
‘contribution receivable’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ 
in the statement of funds and net assets.

 Management determines the classification of its financial 
assets at initial recognition.

 Recognition and measurement
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised 

on the trade date, which is the date on which the Fund becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Other 
financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the date on 
which they are originated.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at fair 
value, with transaction costs recognised in surplus for the 
year. ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date in the 
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to 
which the Fund has access at that date. The fair value of a 
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

 
 when available, the Fund measures the fair value of an 

instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that 
instrument. a market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for 
the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and 
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

 if there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Fund 
uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable 
inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the 
factors that market participants would take into account in 
pricing a transaction.

 The Fund recognises transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which 
the change has occurred.
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sUmmarY OF signiFiCanT aCCOunTing POLiCies
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

 5. Financial assets and financial liabilities [continued]
 
 Impairment
 The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there 

is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired. a financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is ‘impaired’ if there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and 
that loss event (or events) had an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial 
assets that can be estimated reliably.

 Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes 
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default 
or delinquency by a borrower or issuer, restructuring of the 
amount due on terms that the Fund would not otherwise 
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter 
bankruptcy, or adverse changes in the payment status of the 
borrowers.

 derecognition
 The Fund derecognises a financial asset when the contractual 

rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which 
the Fund neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of 
the financial asset.

 On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between 
the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount 
allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and 
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained 
less any new liability assumed) is recognised in surplus. any 
interest in such transferred financial assets that is created 
or retained by the Fund is recognised as a separate asset or 
liability.

 The Fund enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets 
recognised on its statement of assets available for benefits, 
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. if 
all or substantially all of the risks and rewards are retained, 
then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers 
of assets with retention of all or substantially all of the risks 
and rewards include sale and repurchase transactions.

 The Fund derecognises a financial liability when it contractual 
obligations are discharged, or cancelled, or expire.

 offsetting financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the 

net amount presented in the statements of assets available 
for benefits when, and only when, the Fund has a legal right 
to offset the amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

 income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains 
and losses from financial instruments and foreign exchange 
gains and losses.

 specific instruments
	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits with banks and 

highly liquid financial assets with maturities of three months 
or less from the date of acquisition that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used 
by the Fund in the management of short-term commitments, 
other than cash collateral provided in respect of derivatives 
and securities borrowing transactions.
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sUmmarY OF signiFiCanT aCCOunTing POLiCies
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

6.  Foreign currency

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated in Pula at 
the exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated to Pula at the exchange rate 
at the reporting date. non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into Pula 
at the exchange rate at the date on which the fair value was 
determined.

 Foreign currency differences arising from retranslation are 
recognised as a component of net gain/loss from financial 
instruments in the Fund’s statement of Changes in net assets 
available for Benefits.

7.  Property, plant and equipment

 Land and buildings held for use in the provision of services, 
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the statement 
of assets available for benefits at cost or, where applicable, 
at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of 
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation 
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. any 
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land 
and buildings is recognised in surplus under the heading net 
gain/loss from financial instruments.

 Properties in the course of construction, production, rental or 
administrative purposes or for purposes not yet determined 
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. 
Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs is capitalized in accordance with the 
Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets 
commences when the assets are ready for their intended 
use.

 Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or 
valuation of assets, other than freehold land and properties 
under construction, over their estimated useful lives, using 
the straight-line method. each part of property, plant and 
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the 
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. Freehold land 
is not depreciated.

 The depreciation rates applicable are:
-  Furniture and fittings - 20%
-  Computer hardware - 33%
-  Computer software - 33%
-  Office equipment - 20%
-  Motor vehicles - 25%

 
 The residual value of each part of property, plant and 

equipment, if not insignificant, is reassessed annually. The 
useful lives of property, plant and equipment items reassessed 
annually. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to 
profit or loss during the financial period in which these costs 
are incurred. The cost of a major renovation is included in 
the carrying amount of an asset where it is probable that 
future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed 
standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to 
the company. Major renovations are depreciated over the 
remaining useful life of the related asset. gains and losses 
on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the 
carrying amounts and included in surplus/deficit.

8.  accounts Receivables

 Receivables are amounts due from participating employer. 
They are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less provision for impairment.
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sUmmarY OF signiFiCanT aCCOunTing POLiCies
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

9.  Related parties

 Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability 
to control the other party or exercise significant influence 
over the other in making financial or operating decisions. a 
number of transactions are entered into with related parties 
in the normal course of business.

 These transactions are carried out under normal commercial 
terms and conditions at market rates, as summarised in the 
notes to the financial statements.

10.  Investment property

 investment properties are land and/or buildings which are 
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental 
income and/or for capital appreciation, and for which, the 
Fund does not occupy a significant portion. Property that is 
being constructed or developed for future use as investment 
property is classified as investment property. investment 
properties are initially measured at cost and subsequently at 
fair value with any change therein recognised in stated in the 
statement of changes in net assets

 These valuations are performed in accordance with the 
guidance issued by the international valuation standards 
Committee and are prepared or reviewed periodically by 
independent external valuers.

 The fair value of investment properties reflects, among other 
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions 
about rental income from future leases in the light of current 
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar 
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect 
of the properties. any gain or loss arising from a change in 
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property is recognised in the income statement.

 subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Fund and the cost 

of the item can be measured reliably. all other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed during the financial period 
in which they are incurred. when the Fund holds a property 
interest under an operating lease to earn rental income 
and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified and 
accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. any such property interest which has been 
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if 
it were held under a finance lease and the same accounting 
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other 
investment properties leased under finance leases.

 if an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is 
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair value 
at the date of reclassification becomes its carrying value 
for accounting purposes. investment property that is being 
redeveloped for continued future use as investment property, 
continues to be measured at fair value and is not reclassified 
as property, plant and equipment during the redevelopment.

11.  Contributions

 Contributions from both the employer and the employee 
are accounted as at when received by the Fund. Members’ 
statutory contributions consists of 5% of the members’ 
pensionable salary.

 employer contributions consists of 15% of the pensionable 
salary of the Fund’s members. Members are also allowed to 
make voluntary contributions to the Fund.

12.  transfers

	 Transfers	in	–	other	funds
 Transfers in from other funds relate to new members joining 

the Fund on attainment of employment with the government 
of Botswana. These are recognised when the transfer values 
have been certified by the actuaries and agreed by the 
respective employer agencies.
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sUmmarY OF signiFiCanT aCCOunTing POLiCies
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

12.  transfers [continued]

	 Transfers	in	–	Government	of	Botswana
 government transfers are recognised when the Fund has 

accepted liability of the new members being transferred from 
other government pension plans. Liability is accepted when 
the actuarial valuation of the transfer amount is carried out 
and the amount has

 been agreed upon between the government of Botswana and 
the Fund.

13.  Interest

 interest income is recognised in surplus for the year, using 
the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument 
(or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying 
amount of the financial instrument on initial recognition. 
when calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund 
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms 
of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.

14. dividend income

 Dividend income is recognised in surplus for the year on the 
date on which the right to receive payment is established. For 
quoted equity securities, this is usually the exdividend date. 
For unquoted equity securities, this is usually the date on 
which the shareholders approve the payment of a dividend.

15.  Rental income

 Rent income from investment property is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives 
granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental 
income, over the term of the lease.

16.  net gain/loss from financial instruments

 net gain or loss from financial instruments is calculated 
using the average cost method and includes all realised 
and unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchange 
differences, but excludes interest and dividend income.

17.  new standards and interpretations which became effective during the year 

 The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations became effective during the year ended 31 March 2016:

Standard Impact of standard

amendments to ias 19: Defined benefit plans: employee contributions – These amendments introduce 
relief that will reduce the complexity and burden of accounting for certain contributions from employees 
or third parties. such contributions are eligible for practical expedient if they are:
•    set out in the formal terms of the plan;
•    linked to service; and
•    independent of the number of years of service.

when contributions are eligible for the practical expedient, an entity is permitted (but not required) to 
recognise them as a reduction of the service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered. 
if an entity with a defined benefit plan that requires employees to contribute to the plan chooses to 
apply this amendment, the entity will recognise the contributions as reduction of the service costs in 
the period in which the related service is rendered.

These amendments did not
have any impact on the Fund’s
financial statements.
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sUmmarY OF signiFiCanT aCCOunTing POLiCies
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

18.  new standards and interpretations not yet effective

 The following new standards, amendments to standards and 
interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 31 
March 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these 
financial statements.

 IFRs 14 Regulatory deferral accounts: iFRs 14 provides 
guidance on accounting for regulatory deferral account 
balances by first-time adopters of iFRs. To apply this standard, 
the company has to be rate-regulated i.e. the establishment 
of prices that can be charged to its

 customers for goods and services is subject to oversight and/
or approval by an authorised body. The standard is effective 
for financial reporting years beginning on or after 1 January 
2016 with

 early adoption permitted. This standard is not expected to 
have any impact on the Fund’s financial statements.

 accounting for acquisitions of Interests in Joint operations 
(amendments to IFRs 11): The amendments require business 
combination accounting to be applied to acquisitions of 
interests in a joint operation that constitutes a business. 
Business combination accounting also applies to the 
acquisition of additional interests in a joint operation while 
the joint operator retains joint control. The additional interest 
acquired will be measured at fair value. The previously 
held interest in the joint operation will not be remeasured. 
The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and early adoption is 
permitted. These

 amendments are not expected to have any impact on the 
Fund’s financial statements.

 agriculture: Bearer Plants (amendments to Ias 16 and Ias 
41): The amendments to ias 16 Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	
and	IAS	41	Agriculture require a bearer plant (which is a living 
plant used solely to grow produce over several periods) 
to be accounted for as property, plant and equipment in 
accordance with ias 16 Property,	Plant	and	Equipment instead 
of ias 41 agriculture. The produce growing on bearer plants 

will remain within the scope of ias 41. The amendments 
apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016 and early adoption is permitted. These 
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the 
Fund’s financial statements.

 Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and 
amortisation (amendments to Ias 16 and Ias 38): The 
amendments to ias 16 Property,	Plant	and	Equipment	explicitly 
state that revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be 
used for property, plant and equipment. The amendments to 
ias 38 Intangible	Assets introduce a rebuttable presumption 
that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for 
intangible assets is inappropriate. The presumption can 
be overcome only when revenue and the consumption of 
the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly 
correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a 
measure of revenue.

 The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and early adoption is 
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any 
impact on the Fund’s financial statements.

 IFRs 15 Revenue from contracts with customers: This 
standard replaces ias 11 Construction	Contracts,	IAS	18	Revenue,	
IFRIC	 13	 Customer	 Loyalty	 Programmes,	 IFRIC	 15	 Agreements	
for	 the	 Construction	 of	 Real	 Estate,	 IFRIC	 18	 Transfer	 of	 Assets	
from	 Customers	 and	 SIC-31	 Revenue	 –	 Barter	 of	 Transactions	
Involving	Advertising	Services. The standard contains a single 
model that applies to contracts with customers and two 
approaches to recognising revenue: at a point in time or 
over time. The model features a contract-based five-step 
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much 
and when revenue is recognised. The standard is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early 
adoption permitted under iFRs. The standard is not expected 
to have any impact on the Fund’s financial statements.
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FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

 IFRs 9 Financial Instruments: On 24 July 2014, the iasB 
issued the final iFRs 9	Financial	Instruments standard, which 
replaces earlier versions of iFRs 9 and completes the iasB’s 
project to replace ias 39 Financial	 Instruments:	 Recognition	
and	 Measurement. This standard will have an impact on 
the measurement bases of a company’s financial assets 
to amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive 
income or fair value through profit or loss. even though these 
measurement categories are similar to ias 39, the criteria for 
classification into these categories are significantly different. 
in addition, the iFRs 9 impairment model has been changed

 from an “incurred loss” model from ias 39 to an “expected 
credit loss” model. The standard is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with retrospective 
application and early adoption is permitted. The amendments 
are not expected to have any impact on the Fund’s financial 
statements.

 equity method in separate Financial statements 
(amendments to Ias 27): The amendments allow an entity to 
apply the equity method in its separate financial statements 
to account for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures. The amendments apply retrospectively for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and early 
adoption is permitted. These amendments are not expected 
to have any impact on the Fund’s financial statements.

 sale or Contribution of assets between an Investor and 
its associate or Joint venture (amendments to IFRs 10 
and Ias 28): The amendments require the full gain to be 
recognised when assets transferred between an investor 
and its associate or joint venture meet the definition of a 
‘business’ under iFRs 3 Business	 Combinations. where the 
assets transferred do not meet the definition of a business, 
a partial gain to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests 
in the associate or joint venture is recognised. The definition 
of a business is key to determining the extent of the gain 
to be recognised. The amendments apply prospectively for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and early 
adoption is permitted. These amendments are not expected 
to have any impact on the Fund’s financial statements.

41



B
P

O
P

F 
AN

N
U

AL
 R

EP
O

R
T 

20
15

/1
6 

FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

1.  Financial risk factors

 Financial risk is inherent in the Fund’s management of 
investments which are held in various financial instruments. 
This is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 
measurement and monitoring that is subject to an extensive 
framework of risk limits and other controls. The process of 
risk management is critical to the Fund’s ongoing operations 
with the day to day management of financial instruments 
being conducted by investment managers. The

 Fund’s objectives, policies and procedures for managing the 
risk exposure and the methods used to measure the risks 
have remained consistent with the previous year and there 
has been no significant change in the risk profile as compared 
to the previous year.

 The Fund has established investment guidelines. These 
guidelines set out its investment objectives, a benchmark 
portfolio and approved investments. The investment 
guidelines also set out minimum performance measurements 
of returns on its investments, which are managed by a 
number of investment managers. strict measures including 
past performance, domicile of entity, skills and qualifications 
of asset managers and international affiliations are observed 
for appointing investment managers.

 
 The performance of individual managers is compared against 

industry class performance.

 The investment Committee is responsible for the Fund’s 
overall financial risk management approach and for approving 
investment guidelines, the risk strategies and principles.

 
 The Fund’s investment portfolio was divided between fourteen 

investment managers. each has complete discretion as to 
the composition of their share of the portfolio within the 
bounds allowed by the Pension and Provident Funds act, their 
mandates and the rules of the Fund. The Board of Trustees 
meets at quarterly intervals to monitor the performance 
of the investment managers. Overall responsibility for 
investment and performance lies with the Board of Trustees.

 The investment committee meets monthly to review 
performance of the asset manager. The Board of Trustees 
have also engaged the service of an asset consultant 
to provide expertise in evaluating the asset manager 
performance. such performance assessments are based on 
reported rates of return, investment classes, costs related to 
investments, etc.

 types of risk exposure
 The Fund is exposed to various financial risk exposures, 

including market risk (comprising currency risk, interest rate 
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

 Currency risk:
 The Fund is exposed to currency risk mainly through its 

investments and term deposits denominated in foreign 
currencies, and foreign investments in securities, bonds and 
unitised and mutual funds as per note 11. The Fund’s total 
exposure to currency risk (in P’000) through its investments 
in the above financial instruments amounts to P30 958 764 
(2015: P31 813 877).
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FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

1.  Financial risk factors  [continued]

 The table below gives an indication of the Fund’s total exposure in different currencies.

 Financial instruments   Amount  Amount  Amount  Total
   BWP’000  USD’000  ZAR’000  BWP’000

 31-mar-16

 equity  Listed  11 608 902  2 693 457  -  41 045 590
  unlisted  1 969 772  -  -  1 969 772
 unitised funds  Listed  -  -  -  -
  unlisted  -  2 637  13 801  39 043
 Bonds  Listed 5 724 397  -  1 857 932  7 100 643
  unlisted  -  -  -  -
 Cash and cash equivalents  3 908 325  9 230  7 985  4 015 112
 total   23 211 396  2 705 324  1 879 718  54 170 160
 amount in BwP   23 211 396 29 566 380  1 392 384  54 170 160
 
 31-mar-15

 equity  Listed  8 477 746  116 227  -  9 635 386
  unlisted  1 638 391  -  13  1 638 404
  unitised funds Listed  -  699 847  5  6 963 506
  unlisted  -  978 936  -  9 745 826
 Bonds  Listed  4 560 982  -  1 560 470  6 121 452
  unlisted  658 864  -  -  658 864
 Cash and cash equivalents  4 280 015  1 243 521  1 522  

16 666 437
 total   19 615 998  3 038 531  1 562 010  51 429 875
 amount in BwP   19 615 998  30 251 867  1 562 010  51 429 875

 Interest rate risk
 interest rate risk is the possible loss in the value of a fixed income asset resulting from an unexpected and adverse movement in 

interest rates and consequent change in price.
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1.  Financial risk factors  [continued]

 Interest rate risk  [continued]
 Financial instruments that are sensitive to interest rate risk are bank balances and cash, interest  bearing securities and term deposits.

 interest rates earned on financial instruments compare favourably with those currently available in the market. The net exposure 
to interest rate risk (in P’000) as at 31 March 2016 amounted to P4 015 112 (2015:P10 010 637) being its exposure in respect of 
investments in local and offshore fixed interest instruments and cash at bank.

 Price risk:
 Price risk is the risk that the value of investment decreases as a result of changes in the prices and diminution of value of 

individual investments.

 The table below shows the Fund’s exposure to price risk based on the various stock exchanges on which its investments are 
traded.

 Financial Botswana FTSE NYSE / Johannesburg Unlisted and 
 instrument Stock 100 UK United states Stock listed on other
  Exchange equity stock exchange Exchange stock exchanges Total
  P’000  P’000  P’000  P’000  P’000  P’000

 31 March 2016
 equity  11 244 847  364 056  4 406 999  -  14 782 419  30 798 321
 Bonds  5 724 397  -  -  1 376 246  -  7 100 643
 unitised funds  -  -  -  -  12 256 084  12 256 084
 total  16 969 244  364 056  4 406 999  1 376 246  27 038 503  50 155 048

 31 March 2015
 equity  8 477 746  46 530  570 624  -  2 178 890  11 273 790
 Bonds  4 560 982  -  -  1 560 471  658 864  6 780 317
 unitised funds  -  -  -  -  16 709 332  16 709 332
 total  13 038 728  46 530  570 624  1 560 471  19 547 086  34 763 439

 Fair values:
 The fair values of all financial instruments are substantially identical to the carrying amounts reflected in the statement of funds 

and net assets. The fair value hierarchy of the Fund is disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

 Market risk sensitivity
 The set of assumptions used for each of the risk factors hereunder are not forecasts, but merely “what if” scenarios and the 

likely impact on the current portfolio, based on selected changes in risk variables.

FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

1.  Financial risk factors  [continued]

 Market risk sensitivity
 The table below gives an indication of the risk sensitivities of the portfolio to various risk parameters. assuming that the probability 

of the beneficial change in the risk variables are as likely to happen as an adverse change, both potential increase and decrease 
are shown for the

 indicated scenarios.

 Risk variable  Variable  Varies by  2016 2015
    P’000 P’000

 Currency risk  Pula  +1%  (306 522)  (318 146)
 (fair value impact)   -1%  306 522  318 146

 Price risk  Price  +1%  501 550  227 203
 (fair value impact)   -1%  (501 550)  (227 203)

 interest rate risk  interest yield  +1%  111 870  100 106
 (cash flow impact)   -1%  (111 870)  (100 106)

 Credit risk
 The Fund takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. 

impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred by the balance sheet date, if any.

 The Fund’s main credit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 10% of 
the fair value of favourable contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2015 was with a single issuer. There were no trading derivative 
products in issue as at the year ended 31 March 2016.

 The Fund’s investment Committee is responsible for portfolio management and risk concentration issues and sector exposure. The 
investment Committee is responsible for sanctioning large credit exposures to all investment managers. Financial assets of the 
Fund, which are subject to credit risk, consist mainly of investments.

 Cash resources and unitised investments are placed with investment managers and financial institutions. These institutions and 
investment managers are of high standing. all transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved 
brokers. The risk of default

 is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a 
purchase once the securities have been received by the broker.

 The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation.
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1.  Financial risk factors  [continued]

 Credit risk  [continued]
 
 The Fund is managed as follows:                                                              Managed by the 
   Managed by related parties of
  local fund local fund  Managed by
 Financial instrument managers managers others Total
 31 March 2016  P’000  P’000  P’000  P’000

 unitised funds  180  -  12 255 904  12 256 084
 Bonds  7 100 643  -  -  7 100 643
 Cash and cash equivalents  3 806 665  -  208 449  4 015 114

 total  10 907 488  -  12 464 353  23 371 841

 31 march 2015
 unitised funds  7 615 920  382 048  8 711 364  16 709 332
 Bonds  5 219 846  1 560 470  -  6 780 316
 Cash and cash equivalents  16 562 021  64 440  39 976  16 666 437

 total  29 397 787  2 006 958  8 751 340  40 156 085

 The financial assets of the Fund which are subject to credit risk consists of bonds, unitised funds, loan, cash resources and 
receivables. These are not collateralized or subject to credit enhancements. These are readily convertible into cash. The cash 
resources are placed with reputable financial institutions. The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor 
impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available).

   Fixed Variable
 Financial instruments  interest interest Total  Credit rating
 31 March 2016   P’000  P’000  P’000

 Bonds  Listed  587 347  -  587 347  A or similar
   817 484  50 914  868 398  AA or similar
   434 233  -  434 233  B or similar
   3 259 067  248 768  3 507 835  Not rated
  total  5 098 131  299 682  5 397 813
  unlisted  4 157  2 003  6 160  AA or similar
   428 825  217 184  646 009  Not rated
  total  432 982  219 187  652 169
 Unitised funds  unlisted  584 619  302 494  887 113  Not rated
  total  584 619  302 494  887 113
 Cash and cash equivalents  8,326  3 836  12 162  A or similar
   67 687  -  67 687  AA or similar
   389 253  244 760  634 013  Not rated
  total  465 266  248 596  713 862
 grand total   6 580 998  1 069 959  7 650 957

FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

1.  Financial risk factors  [continued]

 Credit risk   [continued]

 Financial instruments  interest interest Total  Credit rating
 31 March 2015   P’000  P’000  P’000

 Bonds  Listed  2 219 111  -  2 219 111  a or similar
   1 475 431  -  1 475 431  BBB or similar
   2 055 098  371 812  2 426 910  not rated
  total  5 749 640  371 812  6 121 452
  unlisted  339 899  318 965  658 864  not rated
  total  339 899  318 965  658 864
 Unitised funds  Listed  -  6 963 502  6 963 502  not rated
  total  -  6 963 502  6 963 502
  unlisted  533 725  9 212 101  9 745 826  not rated
  total  533 725  9 212 101  9 745 826
 Cash and cash equivalents  3 387 374  13 279 063  16 666 437  not rated
  total  3 387 374  13 279 063  16 666 437
 Grand total   10 010 638  30 145 443  40 156 081

 These ratings have mainly been assigned by the respective asset managers and represents as follows 

 a/a- or similar  strong capacity to meet financial commitments, but somewhat susceptible to adverse economic conditions   
 and changes in circumstances.

 aa or similar  very strong capacity to meet financial commitments
 aaa or similar extremely strong capacity to meet financial commitments. Highest Rating
 BBB or similar  adequate capacity to meet financial commitments, but more subject to adverse economic conditions.
 B or similar  vulnerable but currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitments

Outside of investment and trading activities, the Fund’s most significant credit risk exposure is with various departments of the 
Botswana government, with respect to creation contributions for newly transferred members and contributions of monthly member 
and employer contributions. given the sovereign nature of this debt, and based on the fact that the government of Botswana has 
historically never defaulted on its obligations, the Fund believes that the credit risk attaching to this debt is insignificant. Further 
international credit rating agency Moody’s has rated the Botswana government debt as “a2” which is interpreted as investment 
grade with a positive outlook.
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1.  Financial risk factors  [continued]

 Credit risk [continued]

The contribution due from the government of Botswana is considered to be past due but not impaired. The ageing of this balance 
is as follows:

arising from 2012 2010 2009 2008 2007 and before Total
 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

Balance  97 382  44 147  175 317  197 326  911 745  1 425 917
unallocated member transfer value netted off      (997 736)
net due       428 181
Paid 2016       (428 181)
Closing balance       -

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the 
underlying businesses, the fund administrator maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash resources in bank call 
accounts.

The investment Committee monitors the Fund’s liquidity reserves on the basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out 
at the fund administrator level within limits set by the Fund.

The table below analyses the Fund’s financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on 
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

 1 – 3 3 – 12 After 12
 months months months Total
 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

31 march 2016
Benefits payable  960 229  -  -  960,229
accounts payable  16 407  -  -  16,407
Pensioners’ fund account  -  466 272  5 974 766  6 441 038
 976 636  466 272  5 974 766  7 417 674

31 march 2015
Benefits payable  863 372  -  -  863 372
accounts payable  29 395  -  -  29 395
Pensioners’ fund account  -  485 896  5 898 614  6 384 510
 892 767  485 896  5 898 614  7 277 277

FiNaNCiaL risK ManageMenT [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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CriTiCaL aCCOUNTiNG EsTimaTEs anD JuDgeMenTs
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below.

 (a) Basis for determining fair values of investments
The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on bid price. if the market for a financial asset is not active, 
the Fund establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, 
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. 

The most significant private equity investment held by the Fund relates to the investment in Mascom wireless Botswana 
(Pty) Limited through Deci investments (Pty) Limited. in 2015 the trustees of the Fund engaged Kaplan equity analysts, an 
independent firm with experience in valuing companies in the telecom sector, to value of Mascom wireless Botswana (Pty) 
Limited for purposes of determining an appropriate fair value for financial reporting.

in 2015, an assessment of the main assumptions used by the independent valuator was carried out and it was concluded that 
there is no significant change in the fair value as at 31 March 2015. accordingly the Trustees have resolved to account for the 
investment in Deci investments (Pty) Limited at an unchanged value from last year.

For the purpose the independent valuation, the valuator utilised the discounted free cash flow valuation model, with key 
assumptions relating to the discount rate (15.8%), the terminal growth rate (8%) and the 2024 mobile saturation penetration 
rate 172%. Discount rate is defined as the weighted average cost of capital of Mascom wireless Botswana (Pty) Limited. in 
arriving at this rate, the valuator has considered the terminal growth rate, risk free rate, market risk premium and cost of 
debt. Terminal growth rate is the rate at which the profitability of Mascom wireless Botswana (Pty) Limited is expected to grow 
into the future and this is estimated after taking into consideration inflation and gDP growth rate forecasts. The saturation 
penetration represents the estimated mobile subscribers as a percentage of total population. any changes in the former two 
of these estimates could have an impact on the resulting valuation.

The table below shows the sensitivity analysis on valuation on critical estimates used in discounted free cash flow model.

  Existing value                              Value resulting from changes in
                                   discount rate                                terminal growth rate 
                             
   (+) 2%  (-) 2%  (+) 2%  (-) 2%
  (P’000)  (P’000)  (P’000)  (P’000)  (P’000)

investment in Deci (Pty) Ltd   1 638 390  1 433 405  1 978 112  1 819 479  1 531 291

	 (b)		Principal	actuarial	assumptions	used	for	“with	profit”	pensioner	liability	valuation

   2016  2015
Pensioner mortality rates    *  *
inflation    3.39%  3.70%
Pension increase    2.72%  2.95%

 * Post retirement mortality experience follows 90% of the a(55) tables for both males and females with age adjustments of zero 
years and -2 years (2014: zero years and -2 years) for males and females respectively.
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1.  description of the fund

 government of Botswana and its authorised agencies participate in the pension Fund for their eligible employees. The Fund 
comprises of two defined contribution plans and one defined benefit plan. The details of these funds are given below:

 accordingly, the fund’s assets and liabilities are attributed to four main categories.

	 Active	and	deferred	members	–	defined	contribution	fund
 These are members from whom the fund receives monthly contributions and who have not yet attained retirement age.

	 With	profit	pensioners	–	defined	contribution	fund
 Pensioners whose annual escalations in benefits determined based on performance of the underlying investments.

	 Without	profit	pensioners	–	defined	benefit	fund
 Pensioners whose annual escalations in benefits are predetermined and fixed throughout the pension period.

 Operations and reserves
 Reserves set aside through operation of the Fund’s rules and not yet allocated to individual members’ accounts. This category also 

includes the assets and liabilities of the fund secretariat and cash which has not yet been allocated to specific investment funds.

FUND anaLYsis
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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FUND anaLYsis [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

                                                                                          Funds and pensioner liabilities
31 March 2016  Active and deferred                                   Pensioners  Operations and
 members With profit Without profit  reserves  Total

Number of members  146 623  5 362  2 281   154 266
 P  P  P  P  P
Total funds and reserves
Members’ statutory contributions  6 00 006 103  -  -  -  600 006 103
employer contributions  1 807 195 254  -  -  -  1 807 195 254
Members’ voluntary contributions  3 076 730  -  -  -  3 076 730
Transfer in  8 24 006  -  -  -  824 006
Other income  4 532 919  -  -  -  4 532 919
Transfer value  3 51 245 627  -  -  -  351 245 627
net rental income  2 0 228 929  -  -  -  20 228 929
Profit on disposal of investments  4 773 818 126  156 554 464  (11 670 429.00)  -  4 918 702 161
Dividends received  7 23 074 101  39 400 752  - -  762 474 853
interest received  430 597 441  135 337 893  88 693 418  -  654 628 752
unrealised net gain from investment securities  (3 428 240 356)  (311 194 134)  (35 593 881)  -  (3 775 028 371)
Management expenses  (306 541 709)  (34 703 769)  (12 846 965)  (38 736 506)  (392 828 949)
Monthly pensions  -  (136 109 290)  (361 436 243)  -  (497 545 533)
Lump sum payments on withdrawal  (58 207 245)  -  -  -  (58 207 245)
Lump sum payments on death  (179 408 944)  -  -  -  (179 408 944)
Lump sum payments on retirement  (1 703 249 353)  -  -  -  (1 703 249 353)

 3 038 951 629  (150 714 084)  (332 854 100) (38 736 506)  2 516 646 939

Transfer to reserve account  99 428 445  -  -  (99 428 445)  -
Transfer to pension account  56 527 845  -  -  (56 527 845)  -
inter segment transfer  (635 360 379)  207 139 655  332 956 372  95 264 352  -

movement during the year  2 559 547 540  56 425 571  102 272  (99 428 444)  2 516 646 939

Opening fund balance as at
1 april 2015  43 870 059 825  4 743 709 584  1 640 800 129  1 269 483 229  51 524 052 767

Closing fund balance as at 31 march 2016  46 429 607 365  4 800 135 155  1 640 902 401  1 170 054 785  54 040 699 706

net assets allocated to funds and reserves
Property, plant and equipment  -  -  -  8 507 611  8 507 611
investments  34 297 975 043  18 871 676 885  1 415 588 878  -  54 585 240 806
accounts receivable  1 0 659 042  -  -  -  10 659 042
Cash at bank  2 97 139 978  80 560 671  35 227 954  -  412 928 603
total assets  34 605 774 063  18 952 237 556  1 450 816 832  8 507 611  55 017 336 062

Benefits payable  960 229 357  -  -  -  960 229 357
accounts payable  16 406 999  -  -  -  16 406 999
total liabilities  976 636 356  -  -  -  976 636 356

net assets  33 629 137 707  18 952 237 556  1 450 816 832  8 507 611  54 040 699 706

net funding level - (under) / over funded  (12 800 469 658)  14 152 102 401  (190 085 569)  (1 161 547 174)  -
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FUND anaLYsis [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

                                                                                          Funds and pensioner liabilities
31 March 2015  Active and deferred                                    Pensioners  Operations and
 members With profit Without profit  reserves  Total

Number of members  145 858  5 218  2 250   153 326
 P  P  P  P  P
Total funds and reserves
Members’ statutory contributions  549 087 351  -  -  -  549 087 351
employer contributions  1 651 255 809  -  -  -  1 651 255 809
Members’ voluntary contributions  2 151 211  -  -  -  2 151 211
Transfer in  579 761  -  -  -  579 761
BDF technical allowance  4 458 273  -  -  -  4 458 273
Release of provision made against transfer value  117 291 464  - - - 117 291 464
net rental income  18 510 971  -  -  -  18 510 971
Profit on disposal of investments  5 029 298 935  200 018 031  5 845 003  -  5 235 161 969
Dividends received  514 920 591  42 181 738  -  -  557 102 329
interest received  452 404 215  163 869 574  102 449 750  -  718 723 539
unrealised net gain from investment securities  685 690 633  (266 361 455)  (34 196 534)  -  385 132 644
Management expenses  (358 916 846)  (48 620 835)  (10 546 062)  ( 45 197 565)  (463 281 308)
Monthly pensions  -  (341 690 891)  (128 672 492)  -  (470 363 383)
Lump sum payments on withdrawal  (57 511 962)  -  -  -  (57 511 962)
Lump sum payments on death  (127 223 251)  -  -  -  (127 223 251)
Lump sum payments on retirement  (846 190 016)  -  -  -  (846 190 016)

 7 635 807 139  (250 603 838)  (65 120 335)  ( 45 197 565)  7 274 885 401

Transfer to reserve account  (393 698 488)  -  -  393 698 488  -
Transfer to pension account  (356 472 200)  -  -  356 472 200  -
inter segment transfer  (360 921 738)  547 348 887  124 847 487  ( 311 274 636)  -

movement during the year  6 524 714 713  296 745 049  59 727 152  3 93 698 487  7 274 885 401

Opening fund balance as at 01 april 2014  37 345 345 112  4 446 964 535  1 581 072 977  875 784 742  44 249 167 366

Closing fund balance as at 31 march 2015  43 870 059 825  4 743 709 584  1 640 800 129  1 269 483 229  51 524 052 767

net assets allocated to funds and reserves
Property, plant and equipment  -  -  -  5 999 759  5 999 759
investments  45 649 920 466  4 612 286 679  1 446 559 897  -  51 708 767 042
Member transfer values receivable  428 181 375  -  -  -  428 181 375
accounts receivable  8 755 031  -  -  -  8 755 031
Cash at bank  207 257 447  39 946 182  17 912 516  -  265 116 145
total assets  46 294 114 319  4 652 232 861  1 464 472 413  5 999 759  52 416 819 352

Benefits payable  863 371 842  -  -  -  863 371 842
accounts payable  29 394 743  -  -  -  29 394 743
total liabilities  892 766 585  -  -  -  892 766 585

net assets  45 401 347 734  4 652 232 861  1 464 472 413  5 999 759  51 524 052 767

net funding level - (under) / over funded  1 531 287 909  (91 476 723)  (176 327 716)  (1 263 483 470)  -
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NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

1.  Contributions
 Contributions received comprise of employer’s (government of Botswana) contributions at 15% of pensionable salary, members’ 

contributions at 5% of pensionable salary and additional voluntary contributions by members. Transfers in comprise of individual 
transfers from other Pension Funds. 

 2016  2015
 P  P

2.  Realised fair value gains or losses on financial assets
 at fair value through profit or loss

Fleming asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  271 582 529  1 782 322 051
Botswana insurance Fund Management Ltd  72 470 830  1 186 979 115
investec asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  3 893 967 030  602 679 061
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  (14 507 016)  1 281 021 384
Coronation Fund Managers(Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  60 968  253 807 984
stanbic investment Management services (Pty) Ltd  699 184 937  135 595 330
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  22 902 824  (491 057)
african alliance Botswana Ltd  4 912 945  (6 751 899)
Harding  (35 124 384)  -
sarasin & Partners LLP  3 251 498  -

 4 918 702 161  5 235 161 969

3.  dividend income
Fleming asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  75 531 730  165 856 862
Botswana insurance Fund Management Ltd  50 514 889  106 974 583
investec asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  123 624 445  99 992 326
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  49 457 365  45 462 988
Coronation Fund Managers( Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  -  4 410 234
stanbic investment Management services (Pty) Ltd  -  23 992 983
DeCi investments (Pty) Ltd  226 242 836  82 312 684
african alliance Botswana Ltd  103 296 017  16 880 778
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  57 173 108  8 622 184
epoch investment Partners inc.  863 991  360 697
sarasin & Partners LLP  31 162 853  2 236 010
Harding  44 607 619  -

 762 474 853  557 102 329
4.  Interest income

Fleming asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  237 456 317  245 473 172
Botswana insurance Fund Management Ltd  76 004 270  200 883 742
investec asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  67 653 387  95 528 335
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  131 905 915  59 324 476
Coronation Fund Managers( Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  -  24 523 168
Capital Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  26 003 -
stanbic investment Management services (Pty) Ltd  40 827  62 063 238
african alliance Botswana Ltd  80 050 608  6 196 934
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  4 743 576  6 123
interest on call deposit  20 186 827  12 454 466
interest on fixed deposit  35 368 063  11 859 653
BPOPF Offshore Limited  328 981  409 146
Harith general Partners Proprietary Limited  4 438  1 086
sarasin & Partners LLP  3  -
vantage Mezzanine  859 537  -

 654 628 752  718 723 539
5 3
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NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

5.  Unrealised fair value gains or losses on financial assets     2016  2015
 at fair value through profit or loss     P  P

Fleming asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  (236 589 245)  (969 626 155)
Botswana insurance Fund Management Ltd  118 385 162  (281 039 529)
investec asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  (3 980 502 079)  647 737 038
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  147 856 078  (862 662 990)
stanbic investment Management services (Pty) Ltd  (765 860 169)  237 275 278
african alliance Botswana Ltd  22 017 642  27 438 650
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  (6 700 155)  15 755 433
DeCi investments (Pty) Ltd  -  242 499 000
epoch investment Partners inc.  (228 411 136)  626 008 277
BPOPF Offshore Limited  607 541 078  522 385 227
Harith general Partners Proprietary Limited  (117 078)  571 231
vontobell asset Management inc.  91 371 935  150 368 981
sarasin & Partners LLP  104 861 198  28 422 203
Harding  409 099 255  -
vantage  (1 626 718)  -
Transition account  (56 354 139)  -

 (3 775 028 371)  385 132 644

The total net unrealised gain from investment securities
for the year arise from investments in:

Local direct investments
Listed equity  (659 826 603)  1 109 597 209
Bonds  16 929 588  (77 661 612)
Private equity -  - 242 499 000
investment property  4 028 421  4 680 442
 (638 868 594)  1 279 115 039
Off shore direct investments
Listed equity  (5 740 446 964)  (881 957 706)
Fixed income securities  (102 320 927)  (26 500 103)
Cash and near cash instruments  1 735 513 800  520 962 937
 (4 107 254 091)  (387 494 872)
Unitised funds
Offshore  971 094 314  (506 487 523)

 (3 775 028 371)  385 132 644
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NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

6.  Fund management expenses    2016  2015
 at fair value through profit or loss     P  P

Investment management fees paid to asset managers:
Fleming asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  51 189 182  71 437 178
Botswana insurance Fund Management Ltd  12 308 357  82 208 799
investec asset Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  56 742 872  70 521 777
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  24 568 521  41 813 776
Coronation Fund Managers( Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  -  13 794 602
stanbic investment Management services (Pty) Ltd  -  18 286 665
african alliance Botswana Ltd  20 996 398  1 068 215
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  9 334 459  471 938
Capital Management Botswana (Pty) Ltd  7 520 548  2 897 260
Harith general Partners Proprietary Limited  2 075 392  1 775 000
BnP Paribas  2 126 843  -
vantage  5 246 449  -
BPOPF Offshore Limited  5 985 103  -
Harding  14 682 410  -
sarasin  5 221 145  -

 217 997 677  304 275 210
other service provider expenses:
asset consultancy fee  4 925 117  3 352 536
auditors’ remuneration - for the year  1 660 452  1 660 452
Fund actuarial fees  1 523 068  1 517 420
Fund administration fees  31 415 251  30 795 655
asset custody and other fees  44 580 627  53 865 250
Legal fees  1 517 834  3 073 722

 85 622 349  94 265 035
secretariat expenses
advertising  5 540 946  4 410 560
Beverages and refreshments  563 492  847 284
Computer expenses  2 564 211  552 644
Courier and postage  1 258 319  1 796 919
Depreciation  2 787 029  1 975 067
insurance  377 306  303 108
Motor vehicle expenses  890 904  1 105 044
staff costs  37 247 493  27 878 729
sundry expenses  2 416 268  2 117 742
Consultancy fee  18 108 054  8 150 230
Telephone and fax  2 578 556  1 901 531
Travel expenses  4 126 329  6 272 301
Trustees’ remuneration  627 000  739 002
Trustees’ expenses  5 242 466  2 793 327
workshop expenses  780 763  476 982
water and electricity  464 150  280 192
nBFiRa and other levies  2 203 930  2 075 306
Bank charges  61 783  71 627
Printing and stationery  1 369 927  993 468

 89 208 923  64 741 063

total expenses  392 828 949  463 281 308

5 5



B
P

O
P

F 
AN

N
U

AL
 R

EP
O

R
T 

20
15

/1
6 

7.  Reserve account     2016  2015
      P  P

Balance at beginning of year  1 269 483 230  527 876 402
Release of reserve  (127 966 631)  140 580 741
Transfers to data reserve  2 5 595 475  2 38 700 598
Foregone benefits transferred (Rule 4.3)  2 942 711  14 417 149
 (99 428 445)  393 698 488
Transfer from death benefit liability account (note 14)  -  347 908 340

Balance at end of year  1 170 054 785  1 269 483 230

(a)  Rule 4.3.1(a) of the fund requires that any amount by which the investment earnings of the fund exceed the rate of investment 
earnings declared by the Trustees (on the advice of the actuary) should be transferred to a Reserve account.

(b)  Rule 4.3.1(b) of the fund requires that forfeited benefits of members who have left the service prematurely should be transferred 
to a Reserve account.

(c)  Rule 4.3.2 of the fund requires that the amount standing to the credit of the Reserve account should be increased or decreased 
by the share of the investment earnings of the Fund that the amount in the Reserve account bears to the sum of all accounts 
standing to the credit of the fund.

 
The reserve account comprises of the following; 2016  2015
 P  P

Data reserve  464 296 073  438 700 598
general reserve  705 758 712  830 782 632

 1 170 054 785  1 269 483 230

data reserve
The data reserve was created to meet the cost of any losses incurred by the fund due to data errors in underlying data of individual 
members. This reserve is being maintained as there is still some uncertainty with regards to certain transfer valuations.

general reserve
This reserve includes withdrawal profits and other appropriations.

withdrawal profits refer to the portion of a member’s fund credit that the member is not entitled to on leaving the fund. Rule 4.3.1 
of the fund requires that this portion be credited to a reserve account.

The general reserve is maintained to provide additional liquidity to meet expenses and pay insurance premiums.

NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016

8.  Pension account     2016  2015
       P  P

 with Profit Pensioners
Balance at beginning of year  4 743 709 583  4 446 964 535
Transfer during the year  417 861 815  638 435 939
Benefits payable  (361 436 243)  (341 690 891)

Balance at end of year  4 800 135 155  4 743 709 583

Balance payable within one year  341 055 643  348 952 204
Balance payable after one year  4 459 079 512  4 394 757 379

 4 800 135 155  4 743 709 583

 non Profit Pensioners
Balance at beginning of year  1 640 800 129  1 581 072 977
Transfer during the year  136 211 563  188 399 644
Benefits payable  (136 109 290)  (128 672 492)

Balance at end of year  1 640 902 402  1 640 800 129

Balance payable within one year  125 215 788  136 943 372
Balance payable within after year  1 515 686 614  1 503 856 757

 1 640 902 402  1 640 800 129

Rule 4.4.1 requires a Pensions account to be maintained under the fund and to be credited with the value of the Member’s Fund 
Credit at his/her retirement in respect of those members who elected in terms of the option in Rule 5.3.1 to have their pension paid 
from the Fund, and any amount transferred from the Reserve account in terms of rule 4.3.1(d).

9.  death benefit liability reserve     2016  2015
       P  P

Balance at beginning of year  -  347 908 340
Transfer during the year  -  (347 908 340)
Death benefit liability  -  -

Rule 6.1 requires that, if a member dies while in service, a lump sum equal to the greater of his/ her annual salary or his/her Fund 
Credit at the date of death is to be paid.

5 7
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10.  Property, plant and equipment
   Computer  Office Motor  Leasehold

  Furniture and fittings equipment equipment vehicles  Improvements  Total 

year ended 31 march 2016  P  P  P  P  P  P

Balance brought forward  2 114 248  1 534 802  911 719  1 438 990  -  5 999 759
additions during the year  2 302 061  5 494 856  1 977 582  3 129 462  -  1 2 903 961
Depreciation  (2 686 286)  (3 254 666)  (1 659 691)  (2 795 466)  -  (10 396 109)
 1 730 023  3 774 992  1 229 610  1 772 986  -  8 507 611

 year ended 31 march 2015
Balance brought forward  1 150 855  9 63 865  723 943  591 587  -  3 430 250

additions during the year  3 095 560  2 833 445  1 625 169  3 689 965  -  1 1 244 139

Depreciation  (2 132 167)  (2 262 508)  (1 437 393)  (2 842 562)  -  (8 674 630)

 2 114 248  1 534 802  9 11 719  1 438 990  -  5 999 759

 at 31 march 2016
Cost  4 416 309  7 029 658  2 889 301  4 568 452  201 186  1 9 104 906

accumulated Depreciation  (2 686 286)  (3 254 666)  (1 659 691)  (2 795 466)  (201 186)  (10 597 295)

net book amount  1 730 023  3 774 992  1 229 610  1 772 986  -  8 507 611

 at 31 march 2015
Cost  4 246 415  3 797 310  2 349 112  4 281 551  201 186  14 875 575

accumulated Depreciation  (2 132 167)  (2 262 508)  (1 437 393)  (2 842 561)  (201 186)  (8 875 816)

net book amount  2 114 248  1 534 802  9 11 719  1 438 990  -  5 999 759

NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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11.  Investments
    Offshore Local fixed Offshore
   Local equities /  interest fixed Investment
  Private equity  equities equity funds funds/bonds interest property  Total

 P  P  P  P  P  P  P

as at 31 march 2016
african alliance Botswana Ltd  -  3 046 648 808  -  983 288 478  -  -  4 029 937 286
Botswana insurance Fund 
Management Ltd  -  1 128 844 436  170  1 076 681 452  -  -  2 205 526 058
Messidor - Letsema Fund  -  -  -  40 202 332  -  302 493 780  342 696 112
Fleming asset Management 
Botswana (Pty) Ltd  -  1 178 408 292  -  2 407 062 841  1 453 520 168  -  5 038 991 301
Fleming asset Management 
Botswana - Letsema Fund  -  -  -  317 839 026  -  112 585 835  430 424 861
investec asset Management 
Botswana (Pty) Ltd  -  1 158 663 213  8 633 096 848  922 977 859  50 025 371  -  10 764 763 291
stanbic investment Management 
services (Pty) Ltd  -  -  -  180 199  -  -  180 199
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  -  3 045 707 519  -  1 676 068 221  -  -  4 721 775 740
DeCi investments (Pty) Ltd  1 638 390 395  -  -  -  -  -  1 638 390 395
Fixed deposit-FnBB  -  -  -  1 667 403 972  -  -  1 667 403 972
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  -  2 050 630 152  -  367 833 687  -  -  2 418 463 839
Capital Management Botswana 
(Pty) Ltd  51 381 499  -  -  -  -  -  51 381 499
BPOPF Offshore Limited  -  -  14 947 792 964  -  -  -  14 947 792 964
Harith general Partners 
Proprietary Limited  -  -  11 017 989  -  183 202  -  11 201 191
sarasin & Partners LLP  -  -  1 286 768 273  -  39 002 896  -  1 325 771 169
BPOPF transition account  -  -  - 130 624 166  -  - 130 624 166
vantage Mezzanine iii sub fund  -  -  28 025 064  -  -  -  28 025 064
Harding Loevner  -  -  4 497 740 697  -  11 590 625  -  4 509 331 322
Puma ernegy  280 000 035  -  -  -  -  -  280 000 035
Pre-retirement switch  -  -  -  42 560 342  -  -  42 560 342

 1 969 771 929  11 608 902 420  29 404 442 005  9 632 722 575  1 554 322 262  415 079 615  54 585 240 806

5% of investment  98 488 596  5 80 445 121  1 470 222 100  4 81 636 129  77 716 113  20 753 981  39 709 093 972

NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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11.  Investments [continued]

    Offshore Local fixed Offshore
   Local equities /  interest fixed Investment
  Private equity  equities equity funds funds/bonds interest property  Total

 P  P  P  P  P  P  P

as at 31 march 2015
african alliance Botswana Ltd  -  1 601 533 610  -  2 226 192 493  -  -  3 827 726 103
Botswana insurance Fund 
Management Ltd  -  1 347 506 445  145 901 403  943 323 468  -  -  2 436 731 316
Messidor - Letsema  -  -  -  141 662 200  -  184 557 978  326 220 178
Fleming asset Management 
Botswana (Pty) Ltd  -  1 477 455 862  236 485 275  2 162 645 587  1 866 513 262  -  5 743 099 986
FaM property-Letsema  -  -  -  310 907 982  -  94 334 207  405 242 189
investec asset Management 
Botswana (Pty) Ltd  -  1 078 718 782  7 616 223 967  812 562 561  51 610 163  -  9 559 115 473
stanbic investment Management 
services (Pty) Ltd  -  - 1 933 960 190  - 289 975 541  -  2 223 935 731
Coronation Fund Managers 
(Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  -  -  -  7 877 618  -  -  7 877 618
allan gray (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd  -  1 975 950 879  -  2 479 925 455  -  -  4 455 876 334
DeCi investments (Pty) Ltd  1 638 390 395  -  -  -  -  -  1 638 390 395
Fixed deposit-stanbic  -  -  -  84 455 476  -  -  84 455 476
afena Capital Botswana (Pty) Ltd  -  996 580 009  -  47 954 660  -  -  1 044 534 669
Capital Management Botswana 
(Pty) Ltd  -  -  -  2 854 860  -  -  2 854 860
epoch investment Partners inc.  - -  3 467 798 855  -  -  -  3 467 798 855
vontobel asset Management inc.  -  -  2 722 611 348  -  -  -  2 722 611 348
BPOPF Offshore Limited  -  -  -  -  6 020 767 646  -  6 020 767 646
Harith general Partners 
Proprietary Limited  -  -  -  -  888 961  -  888 961
sarasin & Partners LLP  -  -  1 157 640 155  -  34 079 772  -  1 191 719 927
BPOPF transition account  -  -  -  6 548 919 977  -  -  6 548 919 977

 1 638 390 395  8 477 745 587  17 280 621 193  15 769 282 337  8 263 835 345  278 892 185  51 708 767 042

5% of investment  81 919 520  4 23 887 279  864 031 060  7 88 464 117  413 191 767  13 944 609  39 709 093 97

NOTEs TO THe FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs [COnTinueD]
FoR tHe yeaR ended 31 maRCH 2016
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11.  Investments [continued]

The following investments exceed 5% of the net assets of the single
category investments available for benefits :

   2016 2015
 P  P

Local equities:
Botswana insurance Holdings Limited  834 924 766  608 902 516
Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited  621 385 866  539 178 332
First national Bank of Botswana Limited  1 443 223 701  1 400 530 362
sechaba Brewery Holdings Limited  881 755 573  759 825 584
Letshego Holdings Limited  1 485 043 298  1 078 273 485
sefalana Holdings Limited  1 267 526 230  1 027 473 381
Choppies enterprises Limited  1 024 858 936  606 554 009
Turnstar Limited  764 229 884  473 959 993
Deci investments (Pty) Limited  1 638 390 395  1 638 390 395

offshore equities:
investec - global managed fund  5 147 405 632  4 737 577 256
sTanLiB High global equity Fund  -  1 401 302 528
epoch global Choice Fund Class B   - 3 467 798 849
vontobel FCP-siF global emerging market fund  -  2 722 611 349
investec emerging markets equity fund  -  908 980 416

Local fixed interest funds/bonds:
government of Botswana - Bw005 bond  617 141 863  -
government of Botswana - Bw008 bond 
 698 749 298  -
Investment property:
Commercial property on portion 116 of Farm Forest Hill no 9- KO  42 950 083  41 940 173
Commercial property on Lots 4787 & 4788, gaborone  22 261 325  23 499 865
industrial property on Lot 22041, gaborone  25 950 420  24 759 940
Commercial property on Lot 1108, gaborone  80 732 175  78 694 000
Residential property on Lot 4992, gaborone  15 599 777  15 664 000
Commercial property on Lot 61920, gaborone  81 110 000  79 190 000
Blue Jacket square  27 730 000  -
Letplaza Plot 6142 Francistown  43 270 000  -
Tirelo House PLOT 1140-1145  44 000 000  -
 16 808 239 221  21 635 106 432
investments below 5% of the net assets of the single category
investments available for benefits: 37 777 001 585  30 073 660 610

total investments  54 585 240 806  51 708 767 042 
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11.  Investments [continued]

The following investments exceed 5% of the net assets of the single
category investments available for benefits :

   2016 2015
 P  P

the movement in investments is as follows:
Financial assets
Balance at beginning of year  51 429 874 857  44 894 454 284
Purchases during the year  23 371 128 752  21 595 202 397
Disposals during the year  (16 736 154 244)  (15 440 233 967)
Changes in fair value  (3 894 688 175)  380 452 143

Balance at end of year  54 170 161 190  51 429 874 857

Investment properties
Balance at beginning of year  278 892 185  186 059 477
addition during the year  16 527 627  88 152 207
Changes in fair value  119 659 804  4 680 501

Balance at end of year  415 079 616  278 892 185

total investments  54 585 240 806  51 708 767 042
The following direct investments have been made in debt securities issued
by the participating employer : 
government of Botswana - Bw003 bond  -  378 422 117
government of Botswana - Bw005 bond  617 141 863  552 806 318
government of Botswana - Bw007 bond  377 371 853  302 184 985
government of Botswana - Bw008 bond  698 749 298  562 331 042
government of Botswana - Bw010 bond  148 991 436  241 950 398
government of Botswana - Bw011 bond  291 730 770  181 416 180
government of Botswana - Bw012 bond  53 139 203  -

 2 187 124 423  2 219 111 040

various of the unitised investment funds in which the Fund has invested may also hold investments in debt securities issued by 
the participating employer. These are not considered direct investments by the Fund as it has no control over the composition of 
investments in such unitised funds.
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11.  Investments [continued]

 valuation methodology
The table below shows the financial assets and liabilities that are recognised and measured at fair value analysed by valuation 
technique.

 Valuations quoted in Valuations based on Valuations based on
 an active market observable inputs unobservable inputs
 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)  Total
 P  P  P  P

 as at 31 march 2016
Local equities  11 608 902 420  -  1 969 771 929  13 578 674 349
Offshore equities and equity funds  29 365 398 952  3 9 043 053  -  29 404 442 005
Local fixed interest  9 632 722 575  -  -  9 632 722 575
Offshore bonds  1 554 322 262  -  -  1 554 322 262

total financial instruments 
measured at fair value  52 161 346 209  3 9 043 053  1 969 771 929  5 4 170 161 191

 as at 31 march 2015
Local equities  8 477 745 591  -  1 638 390 395  10 116 135 986
Offshore equities and equity
funds  14 558 009 845  2 722 611 348  - 1 7 280 621 193
Local fixed interest  15 769 282 337  -  -  15 769 282 337
Offshore bonds  8 263 835 345  -  -  8 263 835 345

total financial instruments 
measured at fair value 47 068 873 118  2 722 611 348  1 638 390 395  51 429 874 861

a description of the nature of the techniques used to calculate valuations based on observable inputs and valuations based on 
unobservable inputs is set out below. 

 Level 1
Financial instruments for which their valuations are determined by reference to unadjusted traded prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets where the quoted price is readily available and the price represents actual and regularly occurring 
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

 Level 2
Financial instruments valued using inputs other than quoted prices as described above for level 1 but which are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

 Level 3
Financial instruments valued using inputs for the asset or liability, that are not based on observable market data. specific valuation 
techniques used include discounted cash flow analysis. The principle assumptions used and a sensitivity analysis is disclosed as 
part of critical accounting estimates and judgements.

 transfers between level 1 and level 2
There were no such transfers during the year.
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12.  member transfer values receivable

   2016 2015
 P  P

Balance at beginning of year  1 425 917 186  1 425 917 186
Transfer from Botswana government  (1 425 917 186)  -
 -  1 425 917 186

unallocated members’ transfer value settlements netted off  (997 735 811)  (997 735 811)
unallocated members’ transfer value settled  997 735 811  -
 -  428 181 375

Provision of impairment at the beginning of the year  -  117 291 464
Released during the year  -  (117 291 464)
Balance at the end of the year  -  -

This balance represents amounts receivable from the government of Botswana with respect to cumulative member fund credits 
for services rendered to the government of Botswana prior to establishment of the Fund. such amounts are actuarially determined 
upon the member’s transfer into the Fund, and actuarially reviewed based on new / updated member information when such 
information is presented to and verified by the Fund.

a provision for impairment had been raised against the gross amount receivable in the past due to uncertainty over timing of 
receivable. On 03 september 2015 the government of Botswana paid over a sum of P 636 507 105 as full and final settlement of all 
transfer receivables including all re-calculations thereon after netting off the excess payments (note 16). accordingly the provision 
for impairment was reversed in the previous period.

13.  Cash and cash equivalents   
  2016 2015

 P  P

in current account - active and deferred members  265 159 119  149 893 487
in current account - with profit Pensioners  80 560 671  39 946 182
in current account - non profit Pensioners  35 227 954  17 912 516
in call and money market accounts - fund secretariat (active and deferred members)  31 980 859  57 363 960

 412 928 603  265 116 145

The Call accounts maintained with First national Bank Botswana Limited by the fund administrator earns interest @ 0.30% p.a 
(2015 :0.50%) and the money market account maintained with stanbic investment Management services (Pty) Limited by the fund 
secretariat earns interest @ 4.48% p.a (2015: 5.67%)
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14.  Benefits payable

   2016 2015
 P  P

Death benefits  143 126 773  114 240 507
Retirement benefits  762 112 643  707 555 517
withdrawal benefits  54 989 941  41 575 818
 
 960 229 357  863 371 842

15.  Income tax
The Fund is an approved Pension Fund in Botswana and is exempt from taxation under Part 1 of the income Tax act, 1999. This 
exemption does not extend to the 7.5% withholding tax deducted at source for dividends

16.  Capital commitments
There were no capital commitments at the end of the current and previous reporting period.

17.  Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party in making financial or operational decisions. all related party transactions are carried out during the course of activities 
of the fund.

The Fund was registered as a result of the decision of the government of Botswana to change the public officers’ pension 
arrangement. The government is the sole employer.

Transactions with the employer consists of monthly contributions in respect of existing and new employees and transfers 
receivable/payable in respect of members whose transfer balances are recalculated upon receipt of new information concerning 
their employment details.

The Fund has also appointed independent asset managers to manage its investment portfolios. These asset managers have 
decision making ability concerning investment decisions within statutory requirements of the Pensions and Provident Funds act. 
These asset managers are considered to be key management for
the Fund.

   2016 2015
 P  P

(a)  transactions with employer

Contributions received during the year  1 807 195 254  1 651 255 809
Transfers for the year  824 006  579 761

 1 808 019 260  1 651 835 570
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12.  member transfer values receivable

(b)  administration fee
The Fund has engaged the services of alexander Forbes Financial services Botswana (Pty) Limited to provide administrative services 
for a fee. The fees charged are a fixed rate per member. Total fees for fund administration services for the year amounted to P 31 
415 251 (2015: P 30 795 655).

(c)  asset consultancy fee
The Fund entered into an agreement with novare Consultants with effect 01 February 2013 to obtain consultancy services in 
connection with evaluating investment manager performance, formulating investment strategy and investment returns. The fee is 
agreed at the beginning of the year and during the year under review, total fees paid to the asset consultant (including withholding 
taxes and vaT) amounted to P4 925 117 (2015: P3 352 536).

(d)  Board of trustees’ remuneration
The total remuneration paid to trustees during the year was P627 000 (2015: P739 002) and consisted of only fixed trustees’ fees.

(e)  senior management remuneration
The total remuneration paid to senior management during the year was P10 261 292 (2015: P6 473 959).

18.  Post balance sheet events
The Fund is in the process of in sourcing administration services away from alexander Forbes Financial services Botswana (Pty) 
Limited to its own employees. The contract for alexander Forbes was terminated as of 31 May 2016 and the Fund is in the process 
of acquiring an administrative licence from nBFiRa in its own name.
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